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AT FFIAEEATRT F TG ATTHN G T AT SHEEF] gFHT T TTGTHT FFIATEwd &Har aeq
g7 rafaeEar quTel QAT FFIHEEdArs fgg Jurell a4t fagefl qAETHT FEEEwE T qAEET T AT
I | qHET, AT UTERT STRAT WeTaqraare gorar g FGHeP! AT aTHIer JUTell STHT FFaeeae] o]
4fieh % 900 FIIGH! FEqUrT THATHT HawIT @NE THN G | FFIAIS @IXG T HeTaqra TAaTaTedT T
TehaTId HHATATS 99 SFIAR T T ATHRIAT e AT Tl T FHFIAID] TATIcadh! AT AARETT T8l
TIERT AFHRT TRIST FTEve | FHHIS Faerrae TReb! e fq, e Sifq aar sifaw ey Hifas
FROT FaRTAHT 3T ATerae g ‘v Yeg” wfgafy 9% FE U ww eg” urd T AR U g

ATSIEHI TAHNT TRIST ATE-S) | AT ATAT TS AT 9UhT Risk Based Capital dwt=ar fHETTeT
4T Own Risk and Solvency Assessment &l B[H& FTHT FATEAT TELEhA FFIATH] TAATHT TAT STEH
AT T FAEE 99 98 &8 S eTHIel AT T & |

FEIAIH] SAGH ATEATIAAE 9T g€ TATST AT FNGH AARATIT [GTRTHT GorAT T waFapard fre
HATART FHARIFT AT AT ATATF FHANEE (HIh T SGH AEITITATE qad a3 ATTH G |

fATEr AR HHT STaA SaITUeAT FRGT

FEIAIS TAHT SMGHET FROT g4 &Tfqelrg dTH1HT AIeTHaTe =0T T 1T ooy qiwerr fare 78
ATTHT G | FFIATT AT 7. R09R150 AT FUMNAT TIITHT ¥,0%%, fFATTRN Q3€,39 2T RATIHT Al &7 T
AfaT JaT @IETE g FTEHF! AHT LT GIT T G | AT, AT R09RI50 qTE T FOTAT T Glear
TEFH STEE PRI g 4T AT ARTAE AT T EFITE A AT A AT G e ga
TS ATTH G |

Ve fuframaT &% HermE! qur Ieva JeET

YT GIHRATS ATMIE TA, R050 BT THT % AT (G AHT THITAT BT ATAHETE STIT AT TN YT TUehT
7 fAaTeTe SM AT FTAT fadqrer el faRTaAT qraHr FHEeT W #Y @ Akl WU 9T ThH
R050 F wiER AfeAT M4 e AT WHT AR o q9T AT (AATET g A= aawd] AThd qagrar
TYYT HTHT FALT FGIIT TRTH! (965 HHAIG qai=e AITATHT G1AT LRI Oq (Aaaaars = qar==
HITATATE GRS TIYATT FFIAETE [aTAHT T T IR TITRT 99 [TSB199 AR IIed 97A8
faferaare a=a SR faaeer WE TEA F.369,0%3,¥00 H AR FETIT F.5%,393,030 A% 0WRI50 FH
it fora=urET @9 ST RUHT § 99 Ih HY ThH 050 BN HGT AEATHT AT ST@ar TR T
SATHHET TRIGA =Ewg) |

T A AT 309995 T 1. 9. 3095198, AT ST T FhIE TATHE ATIET TULHl BhYe FATATS
ferams fashl T 9T WUHT FwA AR HTATH THH 950,20 §3%, AT FHEAIH T ATMGH TR FHH

Ao sHIfeTH o 9.209%0150 AT ST ATHET FTAT (a0 MRl AqT.9.309R150 HT faarg faerer qar
T I THAATS HATT ATAHT TUAT T FilE THITH AT o AGTFT TR B | BRI HFIAIERT
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T FaTaHT g AURT AR IR IFHETE (AR TRUHN AT qATHN THHAT GFEAgT FLATTART
THEH FR GH @3 T&T FFEIAH G& ATRTAT A& TEH ek PR TRISH =ewal |
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FHCHT SERF [ATTHT TTAT AUH! FMghT FRI AUH] [dAHT AR, TITA FIPRATE TG g alebl B
TAT TAET ATHIRI AR THH T BRAT ATHT AT STIAH] THH G AR HRUT FHFAH] AT AT T
TS AT YThT ATTHT HROT AT H9TT ATHT TR (L9 TRINAY Th aUdw<l Tal augeg a3
faerewae [ Afe! el THAAT ATl AL FIAH [T ATLAEER BRI THA FFIAID G3 AR
AT IR B |

089 FTAAT .90 FISH FhT ToiIATE TAIT TF FFIAIS 0 AT AU ATAT TRIERT ARAT q2ad Ha
Y A TATST IR AUH G T A FFAET qS(? (a7 FaAaer HEmere ey €.340 FRISH
RATH FHT YN TATSA A6 Tgal FFIATH] FOAT T8H! B | 8T HFIerehl Iehl 9ol &.3,54%,%%¥19,300
TEH B |

T AT

FHEIA ATl STAT TITIERTOTETE ST ¥ (e RTehTeRl ATIHT 28 ST SAa=qra= T8 ATTHRT & | HFTel
feeeTfam Ieed Afed FAIEHa FLATH aaras qar HOTTTHT AATAT A [THEAT T a1 TATSH TR
& JAT HT AT AT AT TE ATCHT | TATAR AR TR AT GEHT Flg TOHT GfA®me g7
AN FFEIAG] AT TATTAT HUAT ATSET AUEHT AT Y(AHA 18 7% GF ATHT qlg TH HAgd (Hod
FITT 2THT faeared G | FFIIHT A9 306150 BT A=TGFRAT Ff AT & ¥ 3% FAS TEHl ¥ fafae &
TR AT (0 FHFTarITsT T8 SHHRT RIS =Tewg |
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AR FHT GATET WS G ATRMET 392 Tl SAHFRT RIS =Tewg |
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AR TEAATE ITATY FTHT TATSH Se9T Alad HFIAT ATRAT @ faEq™ T8 ATeEH G | &7 T8,
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TE AT AT TEHT ATTHNRT TRIST ATEw | FFIATT FUMSAT TI9ThT T Q0 FT fioearar omare! faear
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TG I e
prefr 9%
EERS 90
FATTHAT 30
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AfFar 9
FOITAT 90
FETar=T R

AT qATEL

AT R0WRISO FHT HTHT FFIAMAT §¥3 AT FHAREE FTAIA 6 G | HFIATHT FAT FHANGE T
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FHT TAT T TaATTFawdrs FHATIF TTHT FIh TET G | FFIATH AHATT FHATIF! a1 ¥ T TAdrar
fA¥R T&" TP ATRAT FHAEER! FRAGEAT TAT TGS ATHdfg T fafaeT e sreasies q4r Jafimes
GRTET T AfeTHES TET S SATTHT G | STl ST JIRROrETe ST MRUR! a9 aHiisTd AT g
gg ATHTH FATH g5 IANT THH FHARIGESR] qUAH q97 I [qFFH = TH9+ AeqT @bl T a9
AEGH | FFIAIS ATRAT FHAREEER! I [ARTART AN AFATTT TEERT AT TAT FTTFAEE T ATHRAT
FHARIEEATS T&TH TRl FIAATATATIRT FaT T TG FFAT The HRM Nepal Awards for Corporate Excellence

2021 T TEATIT AUHI SHERT e STl TRIST e |

JEUATTT GTATSS IRghicd

AT ATAT GTTIIOTETE ST TRUHT a9 FHITH dTHT FFIAEEd @& ATRTH FAqH T Jiaerd IHH

AT ITRETIE aT9d @ {9 AaLdT T8 G | FFA ATRAT EIRTT ATAINSF IR cAdrs Aedd

T FATS AT TR TR ST HeRT e SOHT GEANTT ATHIE ITEIac q8d T4 AU G |

FEIAM AT.F.309R|50 AT [AFAaHITTHE! FEINTT ATHITE JALENIA ATIAR FAFHE® FATAT TLhl

STl RIS =Tewgy |

® FHUIE YA aTel fafed Sdrers ®vad qdr fae faaror

® FISHIVSI IUHTH] [Heh THIA FATATH] AT TANT g TRIA=Ah] SHTEHT ATNT AT TEATT,

® I AT WUH ARl AN [l T@reey Feares Tha (e ST=RET AN qaT T@res Rfaet
FETATH AT AP qBAmT

® CTHT AT [qeTer! T AT Tl 2o 0 ATHRITT (AT q97 Jemer

® FEATH! ATMUF IcAdH! ATTIHT 8¢ aY AT FAAT ThHATT FIAFHHB! F=TeH

AT 050 ATAHT FIF AIEATHT FUTATH ATAEEHT ATTH! JHFT AT Fearme FFrare Forer
TR AYHRATE €.99 ATGHT EdNT &I TRUBT HA ATHHRI TRIST A6 |

2. iftgw wur sriviitgd uRkfuftare wFusie! FRIERAT WRET 3R
fepg AT AFTAT, AT, ASTHT GSANTT @elebl (Xgfe TAT THIT ITSAATT AFALATA FFIATHT TATTHT
JeTET A TNRTEH &75, | T ALFRATE Fel qeAe@ehl ATATTHT AMGUHT TTqameTehl FROT TAT Sehebl FHUT
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FATHAT HURT FH= AT ATHGIAT HURT J(FHT FRU AAT TRATTAAEE d1g g1 ATaaT AFH A& q9T
HITET AU FHT &S U] &3, | S1ehg qRATHT & JATHAGTAHT FIU HEell (HETHT IaTT g+ ATSIawHT
g TG HEIAH] AT IARHAHT THE THl 573, |

AT T.R09RI50 HT AHNb] TATH] [aTAT TTAT L FIAATIFHET IARASTS TeAT | THHRI HHIATel [ THT
AFAEATTT &9 FE YR AR T AR G GCHT TAAT HETHTaeEHT Al RIS =Tewa |

T I g qAdT A (AT TeAeEdl FRU HAHEewd! aTal oAl HUF! qhgehl FRT THAHIH GTHT
qud afg gq ey TEE FRO AT faTeEEr QTR AT ggd S sfaeg | Ay Fer ey garg
ST TP THIATEE qAT ATl TAT TTe<TPl HRU FATGqd TATSTATHT TUHT eAfeqepl FROT gars drar qar

o N

STAfawrd qRATSIATR ATHIHT ATHTek qAT TAETAT ek de aavs, |

3. wftdew TR wuaT ffrern ong sl Suafed ¥ HiawmT I U FRIET SRRt Sodtaw it
IR
=T AT AT AT ITdET TR TRURT (AT TFAT FFIA T.33c FASH] F SA] ok AT (T THERT
TAATAT 99 GfAeTaer afg) T TR TUH G | AT AT | (G SHT FEEE THATTAT MU Tl
TOHT AT T ATl AALATHT THA T FHEIAA (Asiad ATHT &7 Faitaes drH1eedh AT T qhe
qUH B | I ST TIIRIOETE THTT TATSH TANTH AT AT F.F1 AT AleAT T+ Ta T FEIAS qaiias
93 gfqerae a9R fE=dr ®FH T IHd TUH T |

FATr, FHT ATAF FRIAR AP (e T qar aiide Tiafafaes Tofad TeIed! AaeamHT THT
IeaE ATHT TAATIAT AHTT AT dfgeg | I ATHT IIIIFTaTE JHIRTa TeaTeh THITH 3050 HIY
Afearerae! fafsam drHr sraarEr Tq auE JAAE R & giaeradr FRrae smuEr g1 a9 faww afefeatar
FFIAIH] AT [I&AREN AT FAT 9@l faeqr a7 drHre@esd! qeard add 0 SFadNad OId TogH
T Hife THITHET FARHEE FaATAT T4 AT G | Alfe AT THT AT TARHT NRTTT ATTH! ALATH
THT FFIA AAAAF Ffg BTaed T qhel TR SAHFRT TRIST =Tewa) | ARMHT G0 HFIEI digitization,
digitalization 9T digital transformation qH ATBTATT TAT STHBTATT U TS 3TTEr aa?r I ATHT
RIS =MEwa |
8. ofEfe ua sauifae awawr

FFIATS ATRAT SAq@TF TG Aed fafae sefne o=, saawntas giawee qar agaftgd FFareET
FUYT THEIT FIAH T4 ATEH G | FFIAIET 20 TGl FATAIE THA ATATRAT SHT ATRAT HaqTIF
TrIeeTs faRaR 8 AU B | a1, Tqel qan fagel qeTHehess, TIaTr ke, ST Tofve Ja TR
TG qUYY AFANTF G FAH T3 ATCH & |

FFA AITA [ASTHAT FFIAT [, qAqT feATaad Reeqieed FFIA1 o, &1 qorar eaawitsTaqe) e
FFIATEERT TAETHT FaT T TRREHT AR RIS =T |

- Hannover Ruck Se, Malasia
- GIC Re, India
- Ocean Re, West Indies

- Sava Re, Slovenia

- New India Insurance, India

- Kenya Re, Kenya

- Oman Re, Oman

- ADNIC, UAE

- GIC Bhutan Re, Bhutan

- Sirius International, United Kingdom

- ICICI Lombard General Insurance, India
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FFIAA KM Dastur Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd 4T JB Boda Reinsurance Brokers ATH aw'rﬁzu E['_ﬁﬁ'FIT
FAIAEEHT [AATHT Fred] FRIAR T ATTH G |

FEATA AT (oiia 9T FFRIeed] aHd ATadNTF qoaT T ATeharel T AT digighl ABIRT
ST RIS == |

odTad ATTAT WS WY T WD HRUT

FHAH] AT AATAREH] TTHA] WAATH F=1ed A (gATT TeAdsadl HTAFE THT I (b
e A FATAREH! TIAT AT 09 AT IR TTd 2 T TG FAAGAATS awh TRTH 2T | A7
THYAE FHEEA ATHRAT AR FRU fHfd 050 AET R Td Fd FaTAd TIaTe ATTATAT [GTTTH
7 foch 72T TEHT A TSET HEdSIArs T@aed GeTAdadl SOl (HITh MRCH AAHE TS ATEw |

FFIATERT FATT 0% STE0 35 T T F1fies TR FHIETE GeaIe SEREAT qHeare Haitad deradrated
TETE AT HUAESTA HFATehl eTeleh FTATTRT TSPpaTe HFATehl 98 I ATtk AR THT AFTHT TN
TETAfy a7 T (O TUPT PRI TRIGH ATEvgy | AT FFAIHT GaTcis a7 Aeel # A5Tvs AT STl
HATRAT TR PRI AT 050 HET 4% TARG AR] & T HFIATH] AATAE AT AAET TEaTe ATTATAT
feruarr 7 fasterr afsaran feamfa qvend fooh @@ d=rds qad o Tiva aEresadrs s T
SR TS ATewe) |

BFRIEARATS X Ul HEN FEE

TH HFIAP] PRIEARATS [F FEE THAE I TR G -

— I, ATEN, ETATEL AMAT AT WElautd SieH 997 WEH qiadd qEie Sifadee
—  fteg qor FvaRite wfde qor AeTiqe ardraRor

- FMHAEN MEae g0 FHIAT AR T (Heees

- T et ifq, Hifgd Hifq Far amr U Freewr g afvedy

—  TRAATHT B TRETHT B S FAT faxirg TRAT FETT T SATIEIET TS qieac

Y Seaifad FXEEATE FFIATATS T FHIAEEATS FATF T ATETTF IO TAT ATSTAIE® JoHT TS
TSN TEREH ALRT SIHFNT RIS ATEw |

AHH, TG AMATHT HBFATT AMGHEEATE AT g SH] AMGHATS ZTHT0 TR AN TATA STAT
HRTEaqd e ATH AL TRUH B |

HEW qiead qeevdl SiaHewars o THHl AT T STHT Jaeweorare AT MaeTaeed At
e aravas Nfq g1 FHFHeEH! Gld U T Sifew Eearad T8 AUE G |

fafaer iftgar qor sqwiftad afdes, ASTHITF TaT AATSTE IRATTHT HRT T g AaANTF ATTHATS
TR ITHHT AN FHIAIT HAAAATS TRIeAF T SATETIRT i AET AT (AR T47 720 AHTCRH
fadre o fafafarereor 18 ST MG 9T AT AT TS ATGREHT THT AR RIS =MEw) |

ToTeY SIRGHATS FALATIT TH Pl T AT FIIRorene Sy Hefiepraee! Afaar g oqarei
qAT ETEBTATT STAT ATHRAT TS TR T8 ATUHT FFHRT TS =AEg) |

AETURIE0T UfqageT SR wag
AT T 09R /50 FI A@III GfTTTTHT FHT AR FHAT ATTHT TIRIAT HETTATTEEH TR
TG | TRISTE F@rIereror gfaaed qar ATl @raee Gfaaadl qWhaes Uiy ATa9as Fee
TE ATEIEHT AHHRT TS ATEw |

IR T TRt
FEIATA AT T, J09R /50 AT e I TR AHN HERT TAIAT HETTHATTEEH SAAHRT TRISTE |
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z. T anfie aEmT FFET T TEE FFUHIBT BRIARGT Wifd T §T TfiE qeibT secaAT Ygat feafaer

LENCRIET]
TG FEIATET B GETTF FEAT ARG ERT SAAFNE RIS |

B, HFIT T WERe BFIHI STTich ST TFIes IReT YHE BRIGREE I AT STaftMT hrueie! HRIERAT

STYHT T AETaAqu uiRadd
FEIATET A TETIF FEIAT AREbIel FURITATIARP! B FRIAR ALEHl AERT ATTHRT TRISTS |

0. fomra aficr aEAT FFUETET STURMA IARAIEER HFUAIATE UGS IRTYHT ATADBTST
FEIATATE AR STAREHEEATE Bl ATTHIT T THUHT HERT AT TRISTE |

qq. T aTiier ac AT HFuEieT ToaTas qAUT UGB RIGE (YS! JAVHT TAIHTaHT [aavuT ¥ HFIRIHT

IAY FRIERAT TTEE e el WY U TFAeUAT {oIolgwale Hvusicl Wl T STl
FEIHATRT ST PRI e U FoelTersh Gl THUH! LRI FHFRT WISTS |

qQ. fovrr anifdic aEiAT HFIRGT Trafotid TRATTEEHT el WoaTeleh AT fofSlehT oIfSTehehl ATAGIREhT SATTAIIT
TETehT TTRAT JUTSH IRTZTHT ATABTRIDT SHGIRT
T A, FEAH] TaTAF AT (TR ATRHT ATTEREEHT FFIATET G FA O AEpIaTeear
@Y e LR AANT RIS |

93. HFIRIA ST IR ST GIRG IRHT WY =T AT JoR GG Tl HIRUT, AT JRbT qear
Y STfhd A QT AW IR @iRG IR qUA HFUATA HThTAT IR IHH
FAT AT TIX ATl GG THT HERT AR WSS |

98. SRS feruT JUTTelt WY ar FHTET X WYaT WY Wret faeaa faa=or
FHIATR] ATANE AT JUTATATS TATART TATS AT ATNT TS SUATHITEeRT BTeTehl FaAT (AF FHITH

TEH G |

&. G TR qAT e tAT
o Thea AHCA, FATAR . qaSE
ST, #1565, GEeAh L)
o7 fad gepreT 91U, THE FHFNT Afdemd g
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g, grra gfgsvur farur

AT THI FAR Ased, F=TaF HEpIEEs

1 feeT a7 o=, S=AeE ;e

7 fa9 gepTeT 9I0E, THE FHFNT ATdmd L
§. QAEUET

1 feeT a9 o=, S=eE : qATSTH

AT THIT FAR Ased, =TS ;e

AT qwkY HeEd, FEd L)

qy. fovra i ol ot raeuTUw =T faavur
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AT THIT FAR Aedd, T
AT T Wed, AT
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o Q.
SBT3 HATeryl |

ETIeTeTor Afafaer HFET U q9r FOTe STAT ATTIeRorel ST b faeTeRl Afa=wr e B T AT
T | TGTIIE] ATATTHT FATSTE ¥ ERAEEATE B¥eh ASHAT & € 000 %[ T 95 AT Ga TRTH F |

AGULIRIUT AT IRHT B HRAEDT feeror

—  HFEIATH @, Fole, ATAE AT YU STITh AU a7 FTTH! FATHA T

—  arier faxira faa=or qar ared q@raee yfadeT 99 97 S AT [GURT TaTh a1 gAhd |
—  FHreT fair faarrer aver

— T @Y Jiaqae q97 97 JqaeaHiy Saaam—d [qUhl Jarh IIX FAR |

- AT TIT A6 A@IIIET FAHH ITW AR |

— ST AT YRR G FHIET TR FAREE gfqasd I AR |

- Araik® @I gfqasd, agd A@radan Ifqaganr AATsusT FHI FHAATS ARTHIT TH
W AT E Heelle T ¥HT1T Jal |

—  AEIOAFF] (AThel AT FaTede AEIG TIT dMH AR TATH AT ATTeTH (TR T |
—  HEIATHR] FEATeAp ATATTS AT TR [qoad T qo7 el fae |
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9T YoATad, YIeH Fodad, FABRT THE TUT WQIUSRIEEATS HehTl ARGHT UTiesitia, war qur

RIECIEARG )
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Report of Board of Directors
As per Section 5 (1) KA of Financial Directives, 2080

A. Information related to Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

1 Date of establishment: 2061/02/15

2 Insurer license date : 2061/07/26

3 Insurance business type, nature : Non-life Insurance Business
4 Date of commencement of business: 2061/08/02
5

Other Matters : None

B. The Board of Directors of the company has approved and declare the following:
1 The company has paid the applicable tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under the relevant laws & regulations.

2 The share structure of the company is as below:
Promoter Share Holding : 51%
Public Share Holding  : 49%
There has been no changes in the share holding structure of the company in the financial year 2079-80.

3 The company has been maintained the solvency ratio as prescribed by the Nepal Insurance Authority(NIA).

4 a) Assets that financial amount contained in Statement of Financial Position are not overstated than it's fair value.
b) The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost convention, except for certain assets and liabilities which are
measured at fair value.

5  Investment made by the company are in line with investment directive issued by Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA).

6  Number of claim settled within the financial year 2079-80 is 29,800 and outstanding claim number as on Asadh End 2080
is 1780 (without outstanding COVID Insurance Claim). The company has the policy to settle the outstanding claims within
21 days after receipt all the required documents/information. Total no. of outsanding claim including COVID insurance is
12,028.

7 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) issued by
Nepal Accounting Standard Board (ASB) and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, directives issued
by Nepal Insurance Authority along with compliance and other disclosure as per other applicable laws.

8  The appropriate accounting policy has been consistently applied, unless otherwise specifically stated.

9  The Financial Position of the company as on 31st Asadh 2080 and its financial performance for the year ended 31st Asadh
2080 are presented fairly in all material respects.

10  The board of directors of the company has implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and for
identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.

11 The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis. The board of directors have considered a wide range of
information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows, and capital resources
while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon company's ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operation
of it.

12 The internal control system of the company is commensurate with the size, nature and volume of the company's business.

13 The company has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2079, Insurance Regulation, Companies Act,
2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and insurer's director or with any entity in which
insurer's director has interest.

14 No penalty has been levied by Nepal Insurance Authority during the financial year 2079-80.

15 Other disclosure: None

Shikhar
nsurance | ,
H

ﬂPPI’JM}‘ﬂHGE




B.K. AGRAWAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Saraswati Vatika
122 Pannahiti Marg,
Sifal - Ward No. 7

MEMBER CROWE GLOBAL P.0. Box 3761, Kathmandu, Nepal.
T: +977-1-4581865, 4567694, 4567568
E: bkag@crowe.com.np
W: www.crowe.com/np

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of
Shikhar Insurance Company Limited
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Company’) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), and the Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows attached thereto, for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes &
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statement read
together with Notes forming part of the financial statement presents fairly, in all material respects, the Financial Position of the company
as at Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), and its Financial Performance, Changes in Equity, Cash Flow for the year then ended and a Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs)
and comply with Companies Act, 2063 and Insurance Act, 2079.

Basis of Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs) issued by the Auditing Standard Board of Nepal. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statement section
of our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Nepal together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statement, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the financial statements, as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N. Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our Audit
1. Revenue Recognition (Premium Income) Our audit procedures on recognition of premium income included:
Premium income comprises major part of revenue | 1. Obtaining clear understanding of the process of issuing the policies as
which is recorded on issue of the policy as per directives issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority and understanding
prescribed by the directives of Nepal Insurance the process of booking such income.
Authority. Unearned premium income is | 2. Tested the design, implementation, and operating effectiveness of key
recorded/adjusted as estimated by actuarial controls over revenue recognition.
valuation report. Estimation of income can be right | 3. Verified underwriting documents and premium calculation thereon as
only if the factors involved are incorporated in the per regulatory requirements and internal policies of the company on
system and extracted correctly from the system. sample basis along with premium receipt, verified premium ceded as
per Reinsurance agreement/treaty with Reinsurers.
4. Verified unearned premium income as assessed by appointed actuary
in his actuarial valuation report.

Our results:

Based on work carried out as above, we considered the premium income

recognition to be acceptable

2. | Insurance Claim Our Audit procedures on insurance claim Included:
Insurance claim is the major area of expense for | 1 - optaining clear understanding of the process/ guidelines as per directives
the insurance companies. Issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority for processing claim as well
Total Claim incurred include paid claim, outstanding Internal operational guidelines relating to claim processing.
claim and claim Incurred but Not (Enough) Reported . .
IBN(E)R and Margin for Adverse Deviation (MAD), 2. Performed tgst of cgntrols, test of details and analytical
on outstanding claims.

The provision and payment of claims was one of 3. Verified the clai id and - |
the areas which required significant auditor attention |~ erified the claim pal_ and provision on samplg'dy
and one of the matters of most significance in phayment, docltjmentatlc.)n as well as surveyor rep rto
financial statement. the process of accounting.

Member Crowe Global
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S.N.

Key Audit Matters

How the matters were addressed in our Audit

4. In case of IBN(E)R, these provisions have been captured by the
Actuary appointed by the company. The actuarial valuation of liability
in respect of IBNR and IBN(E)R claims as at July 16, 2023 is as
certified by the company’s appointed actuary and we had verified the
amount and related liability based on such report.

Our Results:
Based on work carried out as above, we considered the insurance claim
expenses be acceptable.

Valuation of investments at amortized cost and
measured at fair value through PL

Investment of the Company comprises of investment
in quoted /unquoted equity instruments, fixed deposits
and debentures of various banks and financial
institutions.

Valuation of the aforesaid securities have been done
in accordance with NAS 39 read with NFRS 9. The
investment in fixed deposit is recognized at Amortized
Cost whereas investments in equity instruments quoted
and unquoted, are valued at Fair Value through
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income Loss on
the reporting date.

Given the varieties of treatments recommended for
valuation of investment based on investment objective
targeted by the management, nature of cash flows,
complexity of calculations and significance of amount
involved in such Investments, thus, we have considered
it as a Key Audit Matter in our audit.

Our Audit procedures on valuation of investment included:
1. We tested the design, implementation, and operating effectiveness
of key controls over valuation process of investments.

2. Review of investments of the company and its valuation in accordance
with NFRS

3. Assessment of the business model adopted by the management and
the nature of expected cash flow of the investments on the basis of
available evidence/circumstances and ensured that classification of
investment is commensurate with nature of cash flows and management
intention of holding the investments.

4. For the investment’s valuation at amortized cost, we have verified the
Accrued Interest, amortization schedule on test basis.

5. For Investments (quoted) valued through OCI, we reviewed the fair
value considering the closing price in NEPSE as on the reporting date.

Our Results:
Based on work carried out as above, we considered the valuation of
Investments at amortized cost and measured at fair value to be acceptable.

Information Technology Controls

IT controls include recording of transactions, generating
reports in compliance with reporting requirement of
Nepal Insurance Authority and other compliances to
regulators is an important part of the process. Hence
the company’s financial and reporting processes are
highly dependent on the effective working of Core
Insurance Software.

We have considered this as a key audit matter as any
control lapses, validation failures, incorrect input data
and wrong extraction of data may result in incorrect
reporting to the management, shareholders, and
regulators.

Our Audit procedures on Information Technology Controls included:

1. Understanding the Core Insurance Software and other allied systems
used by the company for accounting and reporting purposes and
control.

2. Understanding the process of feeding data in the system and conducting
a walkthrough of the extraction of the financial information and
statements from the IT systems existing in the company.

3. Walkthrough of access control of the users.

4. Reviewing the reports generated by the system on sample basis.

Our Results:

Based on work carried out as above, we considered the controls in the
Information technology to be acceptable.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The company's management is responsible for the presentation of the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the company's Annual Report such as Report of Board of Directors/Chairman’s Statement but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and accordingly,
we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated above, any form of assurance conclusion there on. Our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on audit work done by us on financial statement, the other
information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements.

However, we have not received the other information to be part of Annual Report prior to the date of this Auditor's Report.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial Statements in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standard (NFRS), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the company'’s ability to continue as
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements whether due to fraud, error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of the internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

C. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
company to cease to continue as a going concern.

€. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Financial Statements, Including the disclosures, and whether the Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within Company to
express an opinion on the Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirement regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationship and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

To the best of our knowledge and according to explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of account of company,

necessary for the purposes of our audit to the extent for the scope of our audit:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations along with replies to our queries, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

b. In our opinion, the financial statements comprising of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows prepared in accordance with the requirements of
Companies Act, 2063 and format prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority are in agreement with the books of Accounts.

c. In our opinion, books of accounts and records of the company have been maintained as required by prevailing laws.

d. To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us and so far, as appeared from the examination of the
books of accounts, we have not come across any cases where Board of Directors or any employee have acted contrary to the legal
provision relating to accounts, or committed any misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the company.

e. We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our examination of the books of accounts.

To the best of our knowledge, Company has maintained Special Reserve, and other mandatory reserves in line with directives issued

by Nepal Insurance Authority.

We did not obtain any information indicating engagement of the company in activities other than insurance business as approved/licensed

by the Nepal Insurance Authority.

We did not obtain any information indicating company's activities which is prejudicial to the interest of the Insured.

The company has acted as per directives of Nepal Insurance Authority.

We did not obtain any information indicating issuance of insurance policy other than as approved by Nepal Insurance Authority.

It appears that all the financial and other information/subject matters which is required to be informed to the shareholders as per prevalent

laws has been provided to the shareholders.

|. To the best of our knowledge, the company is eligible and capable to bear its long-term liabilities from the assets of the company.

m. The internal control system implemented by the company is found to be effective.

»

B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Managing Partner
For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 240216CA00018ZW2da

-

@

e

Kathmandu
Date: Falgun 04, 2080
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Financial Position
As At 16th July, 2023 (Ashad End 2080)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes Current Year | Previous Year
Assets
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 4 8,935,489 996,448
Property and Equipment 5 781,645,864 779,675,638
Investment Properties 6 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 7 92,413,559 129,355,730
Investment in Subsidiaries 8
Investment in Associates 9 72,891,606 52,951,163
Investments 10 4,186,715,994 | 3,986,260,161
Loans 11 - -
Reinsurance Assets 12 3,914,328,283 | 4,238,344,516
Current Tax Assets 21 5,918,345 100,225,081
Insurance Receivables 13 924,393,584 852,372,326
Other Assets 14 343,418,853 396,548,975
Other Financial Assets 15 595,048,646 411,542,713
Cash and Cash Equivalent 16 117,852,994 316,060,603
Total Assets 11,043,563,217 | 11,264,333,354
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17(a) 2,654,947,300| 2,286,081,200
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17(b) - -
Share Premium 17(c) - 160,902,639
Special Reserves 17(d) 1,462,322,730| 1,335,849,418
Catastrophe Reserves 17(e) 115,620,908 125,669,741
Retained Earnings 17(f) 89,456,264 273,666,342
Other Equity 17(g) 564,419,374 514,029,440
Total Equity 4,886,766,576 | 4,696,198,780
Liabilities
Provisions 18 132,588,380 173,804,740
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 5,062,237,863| 5,397,080,047
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 - -
Insurance Payable 20 121,305,735 245,112,184
Current Tax Liabilities 21 - -
Borrowings 22 147,801,819 200,228,619
Other Liabilities 23 385,516,148 442,087,979
Other Financial Liabilities 24 307,346,696 109,821,005
Total Liabilities 6,156,796,641( 6,568,134,574
Total Equity and Liabilities 11,043,563,217 | 11,264,333,354
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Gaurav Agrawal B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner

B.K. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya  Dr. Shrujana Shrestha Puskar Mahat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director Director
Date: Falgun 04, 2080
Kathmandu
S hi kKhar
Happysurance




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Period 17th July, 2022 - 16th July, 2023
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2080)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes Current Year | Previous Year
Income:
Gross Earned Premiums 25 5,296,243,137| 4,392,643,361
Premiums Ceded 26 3,918,450,072| 3,158,103,599
Net Earned Premiums 1,377,793,065( 1,234,539,762
Commission Income 27 645,807,783 666,078,537
Other Direct Income 28 13,362,376 14,397,703
Income from Investments & Loans 29 375,393,271 260,743,121
Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes 30 - -
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31 (16,560,007) 3,300,088
Other Income 32 52,489,677 55,184,870
Total Income 2,448,286,165| 2,234,244,081
Expenses:
Gross Claims Paid 33 2,674,944 599| 2,381,582,017
Claims Ceded 33 (1,554,598,906)|(1,340,833,187)
Gross Change in Contract Liability 34 (355,751,668) 99,950,226
Change in Contract Liability Ceded to Reinsurers 34 288,515,461| (70,553,335)
Net Claims Incurred 1,053,109,486 1,070,145,721
Commission Expenses 35 28,806,728 26,625,174
Service Fees 36 11,524,057 12,710,224
Other Direct Expenses 37 16,800,708 16,593,269
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 516,020,781 469,815,060
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 36,850,394 32,612,297
Impairment Losses 40 36,823,135 28,044,314
Other Operating Expenses 41 220,797,642 173,407,813
Finance Cost 42 41,370,356 24,003,023
Total Expenses 1,962,103,287( 1,853,956,895
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net Profits of
Associates Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax 486,182,878 380,287,186
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method 9 (39,427) 147,561
Profit Before Tax 486,143,450 380,434,747
Income Tax Expense 43 260,018,136 107,270,416
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 226,125,314 273,164,331
Earning Per Share 51
Basic EPS 8.52 14.47
Diluted EPS 8.52 14.47
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Gaurav Agrawal B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner

B.K. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya  Dr. Shrujana Shrestha Puskar Mahat

Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director Director

Date: Falgun 04, 2080
Kathmandu
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period 17th July, 2022 - 16th July, 2023
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2080)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes | Current Year | Previous Year
Net Profit/(Loss) For the Year 226,125,314 273,164,331
Other Comprehensive Income
a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments -
Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value -
Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
using the equity method 9 (20,130)
Income Tax Relating to Above ltems 6,039
Reclassified to Profit or Loss =
b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments 30,815,300 (13,201,256)
Revaluation of Property and Equipment/ Goodwill & Intangible Assets 8,049,000 7,540,000
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations (3,034,101) (7,451,856)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
using the equity method 9 - -
Income Tax Relating to Above ltems (10,749,060) 3,933,934
Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 25,067,048 (9,179,178)
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 251,192,362 263,985,153

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Gaurav Agrawal B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya  Dr. Shrujana Shrestha Puskar Mahat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director Director

Date: Falgun 04, 2080
Kathmandu
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period 17th July, 2022 - 16th July, 2023
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2080)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Cash Flow From Operating Activities:

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received

Reinsurance Commission Received

Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers
Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Direct Income Received

Others

Cash Paid

Gross Benefits and Claims Paid

Reinsurance Premium Paid

Commission Paid

Service Fees Paid

Employee Benefits Expenses Paid

Other Expenses Paid

Other Direct Expenses Paid

Others (to be specified)

Income Tax Paid

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Acquisitions of Intangible Assets

Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets
Acquisitions of Investment Properties
Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties
Acquisitions of Property & Equipment
Proceeds From Sale of Property & Equipment
Investment in Subsidiaries

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates
Purchase of Equity Instruments

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments
Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds
Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares
Purchase of Debentures

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures

Purchase of Bonds

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

Investments in Deposits

Maturity of Deposits

Loans Paid

Proceeds from Loans

Rental Income Received

Proceeds from Finance Lease

5,317,152,621
593,962,569
1,479,629,167

13,362,376
8,730,178

(2,506,545,999)
(3,980,459,144)
(28,820,244)

4,875,826,465
731,635,633
1,259,340,403

68,985,008

(2,381,582,017)
(3,457,957,266)
(31,936,164)

(47,472,405) (41,348,170)
(571,199,191) | (437,116,921)
(288,013,729) | (242,512,592)

(16,800,708) -
(139,512,251) | (177,404,202)
(165,986,761) 165,930,177

(2,882,426)

(35,792,289)
2,633,904

(20,000,000)

(81,058,255)
(52,340,585)

(67,865,000)

(15,752,000)

17,891,025

(163,743,240)
912,478

(126,473,226)

(46,853,516)

(676,148,000)

17,341,997
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period 17th July, 2022 - 16th July, 2023

(For the Year Ended Ashad 2080)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Interest Income Received 350,478,132 235,308,324
Dividend Received 5,385,412 7,648,182
Others - -
Advance Against Investment (1,600,000) -
Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2] 99,097,918 (752,007,001)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Interest Paid

Proceeds From Borrowings
Repayment of Borrowings

Payment of Finance Lease

(32,155,352)

(52,426,800)
(20,412,751)

(24,003,023)

(16,320,119)

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital - 592,746,876
Share Issuance Cost Paid (1,905,759) (2,498,958)
Dividend Paid - -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid (19,414,005) -
Others (to be specified) - -
Utilization of CSR Expenses (5,004,099) -
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3] (131,318,766) 549,924,776
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3] (198,207,609) (36,152,048)
Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period 316,060,603 352,212,651
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents - -
Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period 117,852,994 316,060,603
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand 207,384 96,256
Cheuge in Hand - -
Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months) - -
Gold Coin 1,105,887 1,020,985
Balance With Banks 116,539,723 314,943,362

Notes:

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Managing Partner

B.K. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana
Chief Executive Officer Director Director

Gaurav Agrawal
Chairman

Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya  Dr. Shrujana Shrestha Puskar Mahat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director Director
Date: Falgun 04, 2080
Kathmandu
Sh | kKhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the Period 17th July, 2022 - 16th July, 2023
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2080)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Opening Balance in Retained Earnings 239,365,639 186,621,189
Transfer from OClI reserves to retained earning in current year - -
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 226,125,314 273,164,331
Appropriations:
i) Transfer to Insurance Fund - -
i)  Transfer to Special Reserve (126,162,231) (124,941,111)
iii)  Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve (12,616,223) (14,851,353)
iv)  Transfer to Capital Reserve - -
v)  Transfer to CSR reserve (2,523,245) (2,731,643)
vi)  Transfer to/fromRegulatory Reserve 242,643 -
vii)  Transfer to Fair Value Reserve (9,240,879) -
viii)  Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserve (19,178,801) (39,459,624)
ix)  Transfer to OCl reserves due to change in classification - -
X)  Others (to be Specified) -
Add: Transfer from Catastrophe Reserve 22,727,272
Add: Share Premium 160,902,639
Less: Bonus Share Issue (368,866,100)
Less: Cash Dividend (19,414,005)
Deductions:
i) Accumulated Fair Value Gain on each Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL - -

a) Equity Instruments - (26,477,095)

b) Mutual Fund - 2,466,603

c) Others (if any) - -
ii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Investment Properties -
i) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedged ltems in Fair Value Hedges =
iv)  Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges -
v)  Accumulated Fair value gain of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges -
vi))  Goodwill Recognised -
vii)  Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency -
viii)  Accumulated Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity

Method included in Investment Account (2,668,215) (2,695,814)
ix)  Overdue loans - -
X) Fair value gain recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss -
xi)  Investment in unlisted shares
xii)  Delisted share Investment or mutual fund investment -
xiii)  Bonus share/ dividend paid -
xiv)  Deduction as per Sec 17 of Financial directive of NIA -
xv)  Deduction as per Sec 18 of Financial directive of NIA (Impairment Provision for

Insurance Receivable) (25,676,865) -
xvi)  Prior Period Expenses - (1,636,489)
xvii)  Transaction costs on issue of share (1,905,759) (2,498,958)
xviii)  Actuarial Reserve - (7,451,856)
Adjusted Retained Earning 61,111,184 239,508,179
Add: Transfer from Share Premium Account - -
Less: Amount apportioned for Assigned capital -
Less: Deduction as per sec 15(1) Of Financial directive of NIA -
Add/Less: Others (to be specified) - -
Total Distributable Profit/(loss) 61,111,184 239,508,179

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Gaurav Agrawal B.K. Agrawal, FCA

Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya  Dr. Shrujana Shrestha Puskar Mahat

Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director Director

Date: Falgun 04, 2080

Kathmandu
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16", 2023)

1. Reporting Entity

Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the 'Company') is a public limited company,
incorporated on 15t Jestha 2061 and operated as Non-Life Insurance Company after obtaining license on
16™ Kartik 2061 under the Insurance Act 2049.

The registered office of the Company is located at Thapathali, Kathmandu. The Company's share is listed
on Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.

The principal activities of the company are to provide various non-life insurance products through its province
offices, branches, sub-branches, and network of agents.

2. Basis of Preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Reporting Period and approval of financial statements
The Company reporting period is from 18t Shrawan 2079 to 31" Ashadh 2080 with the corresponding
previous year from 15! Shrawan 2078 to 32"9 Ashadh 2079. These financial statements have been
approved by the Board of Directors on Falgun 04, 2080.

(b) Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company comprises of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown as two separate statements,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements which
have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by
the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Act , 2006, directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority and required disclosures as per Securities
Board of Nepal. The format used in the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements and
disclosures made therein also complies with the specified formats prescribed in the directives of Nepal
Insurance Authority.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all
the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

(c) Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets
& Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i. Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value
ii. Defined Employee Benefits

iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for
Liability Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
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In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1,
or 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable &
the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurements in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level1 - |Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

(d) Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the reported
balance of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date of the Financial
Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the year presented. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

(e) Functional and Presentation Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
were indicated otherwise.

(f) Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company's ability
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operation of it.

(g) Change in Accounting Policies
Accounting Policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an
accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial
statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other
events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flow.

(h) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting standards issued and effective
All the accounting standard made effective by the ASB are applied while preparing financial statement
of the company.

Accounting standards issued and non-effective
NFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

(i) Carve-outs
The Company has not applied any carve outs provided by the ASB.

(i) Presentation of financial statements
The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped
by the nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity pattern.

(k) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
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there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by
Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC) and as specifically
disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.

() Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the
Nepal Accounting Standard-NAS 1 on 'Presentation of Financial Statements'.

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the understandability
and comparability of Financial Statements of the Company. Understandability of the Financial Statements
is not compromised by obscuring material information with immaterial information or by aggregating
material items that have different natures or functions.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.
(a) Property and Equipment

i) Recognition
Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more
than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

ii) Revaluation
After recognition as an assets, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably, have
been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount as
at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified
valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase
is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognized in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation,
is recognized in profit or loss. However, the decrease is recognized in other comprehensive income
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred
directly to retained earnings.

Difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation
based on the asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings.

Shikhar
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iii) Depreciation
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment other than the Freehold Land i.e. the Company's
Freehold Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on "Straight Line Method
(SLM) based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting
date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Land Not Applicable
Buildings 50
Leasehold Improvement Lease Period
Furniture & Fixtures 20
Computers and IT Equipments 5
Office Equipment 10
Vehicles 10
Other Assets 8

iv) Derecognition
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized up to disposal or when no Future Economic
Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

v) Impairment of Assets
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the Asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of
an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

vi

-~

Capital Work-In-Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant
and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would
be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Intangible Assets

i) Recognition
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development
costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit or loss in
the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred.

68hikhar
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(c)

Goodwill on business combination is recognized on the acquisition date at the excess of (a) over
(b) below:

(a) The aggregate of:

1. The consideration transferred measured in accordance with the NFRS 3, which generally
requires acquisition-date fair value

2. The amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree measured in accordance with the
NFRS 3, and

3. In abusiness combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree.

(b) The net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed.

ii) Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset
shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant
factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net
cash inflow for the entity.

Amortization is recognized in statement of profit of loss on Straight Line Method (SLM) over the
estimated useful life of the intangible assets, from the date that is available for use since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
the asset. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates, The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Softwares 10
Licences Licence Period

iii) Derecognition
An Intangible Asset is derecognized when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

Investment Properties

Cost Model

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to
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the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost; however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
as mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfer is made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under PPE up to the date of change in use.

(d) Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash & Cash Equivalent includes Cash in Hand, Cheque in Hand, Bank Balances, and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

(e) Financial Assets

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case
of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii) Subsequent Measurement

a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)
A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income in these
financial assets is measured using effective interest rate method.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets
are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income.

c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

iii) De-Recognition
A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive
cash flows from the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial
Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not
derecognized. Where the Company retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued

to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.
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iv) Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(f) Financial Liabilities

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the
Financial Liability.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair Value due to short maturity of these instruments.

iii) De-Recognition
A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

(g) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial
Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(h) Reinsurance Assets
Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount
which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the reinsurer's share of insurance
contract liabilities.

Areinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to
it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that
the company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduce
the carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.
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(i) Equity
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do
not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

() Reserves and Funds
i) Share Application Money Pending Allotment: If the company has received any calls in advance
amount, the amount will be presented under this head.

ii) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium, it receives extra amount other
than share capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is
allowed for distribution subject to provisions of company act & regulatory requirement.

iii) Catastrophe Reserve: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which is
10% of the distributable profit for the year as per Regulator's Directives.

iv) Fair Value Reserve: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount
of Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator's
directive.

v) Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by
Nepal Insurance Authority.

vi) Actuarial Reserves: Reserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit
obligation resulting from, experience adjustments (the effects of difference between the previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred); and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions.

vii) Cashflow Hedge Reserves: Is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk associated with all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a higher probable
forecast transaction, and could affect profit or loss. Reserve represents an effective portion of the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in other comprehensive income.

viii) Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipment
& intangible assets, other than the reversal or earlier revaluation losses charged to profit or loss.

ix) Special Reserve: The Company has allocated special reserve per Regulator's Directive. 50% of
net profit after adjustment of deferred tax reserve is transferred to special reserve.

x) Other Reserves: Reserve other than above reserves, for e.g. deferred tax reserve & Corporate
Social Responsibility Reserve.

(k) Insurance Contract Liabilities

i) Provision for unearned premiums
Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating
to the unexpired term of coverage.

Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross written
premium transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired period
of the policies.

ii) Outstanding claims provisions
Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related
claims handling costs.

iii) Provision for claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Significant delays are experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, the
ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the statement of financial position date.
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The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection
techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse
deviation.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual
cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the
relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount
of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss by setting up a provision for liability.

() Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligation in the Statement of Financial Position.

ii) Post-Employment Benefits

- Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per
local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution
are recognized as Employee Benefit Expenses when they are due.

- Defined Benefit Plan

For the Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each statement of financial position.
Actuarial gains & losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which
they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already
vested and otherwise is amortized on a straight-Line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial position
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past
service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

iii) Long Term Employee Benefits
The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment
has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market
yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

Termination
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits.

g

The company recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
a) When the company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
b) When the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and

involves the payment of termination benefits. The termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.
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(m) Revenue Recognition

i) Gross Earned Premium
Gross Earned Premiums are arrived at after deducting unearned premium reserves from direct
premium and reinsurance accepted premium. Directs premiums comprise the total premiums
receivable for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered during the reporting period.
They are recognized on the date on which the policy commences.

ii) Unearned Premium Reserves
Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a pro rate basis. The proportion
attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

iii) Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted
Premiums on reinsurance accepted comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy
incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance
contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions
of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented
as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because this is
consistent with how the business is managed.

iv) Reinsurance Premium

Direct Reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided
by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts.
Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts
incepting in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of
premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance
premiums are deferred over the term of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks- attaching
contracts and over the term of the reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts. Reinsurance
premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as negative
items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how the business
is managed.

v) Commission Income
Commission Income is recognized on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they
are deferred and recognized over those future periods.

vi) Investment Income
Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the EIR method. Fees and commission that are an integral part of the effective yield of the
financial asset are recognized as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

vii) Net realized gains and losses
Net realized gains and losses recorded in the statement or profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortized cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.

(n) Claims and Expenses

i) Gross Claims
Claims includes the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims handling
costs that are directly related to processing and settlement of claims. Benefits and claims that are
incurred during the financial year are recognized when a claimable event occurs and/or the insurer

is notified.
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Incurred But Not Reported Claims (IBNR) are determined based the following actuarial reserving
methods.

a) Chain Ladder Method based on paid claims

b) Chain Ladder Method based on incurred claims

c) Expected loss ratio method

d) Bornhuetter- Ferguson Method based on paid claims

e) Bornhuetter- Ferguson Method based on incurred claims

ii) Reinsurance Claims
Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according
to the term of the relevant contracts.

(o) Product Classification
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company has accepted significant insurance risk
from the policyholders by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines
whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured
event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i)  Property Portfolio - Property/Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying
out contracts of insurance, otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business
against loss or damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences customarily
included among the risks insured against in the property/fire insurance business.

i) Motor Portfolio - Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use
of, motor vehicles, inclusive of third-party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

iii) Marine Portfolio - Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.

iv) Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic
safeguard to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines
and equipment in project operation.

v) Micro Portfolio - Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to micro property, crops and
livestock. It has great potential to provide value to low-income farmers and their communities, both
by protecting farmers when shocks occur and by encouraging greater investment in crops.

vi) Aviation Portfolio — Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for
passenger injuries, environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.

vii) Cattle and Crop Portfolio - Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or damage
to Cattle and crops.

viii) Miscellaneous Portfolio — All the insurance business which doesn’t fall in above categories fall
under miscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal Accidents, Medical Insurances, Professional
indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of business.

(p) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.
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All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

(q) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash
payments are disclosed as cash flows.

(r) Leases
The lease liability has been accounted for under NFRS 16 “Leases”. For all the significant lease, the
Right-of-Use assets has been recognized at its initial recognition under cash model. The Lease liability
has been recognized at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The
lease payment has been discounted at the incremental borrowing rate in lease which is 10%.

After the commencement date, the right of use asset has been measured using cost model. The lease
liability has been increased to reflect interest on the lease liability & has been reduced by the lease
payment.

(s) Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i) Current Tax
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after
considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary difference between the carrying amounts of Assets and
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of
Assets & Liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable Profit nor Loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible Temporary difference and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary Difference.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

(t) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

i) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to
determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognized as interest expenses.

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books a matter of abundant precaution and
conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes
that chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any
probable cash outflow.
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(u)

v)

(w)

ii) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future
outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are
assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are
provided for.

iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are
not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which in the Company's
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the Company's Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by
the Weighted Average Number of equities shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted
to assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Operating Segment
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8," Operating Segment".

Company's Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income &
Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company's Asset & Liabilities are
considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Softwares

Goodwill

Others

to be specified)

Total

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2078

Additions during the year

Acquisition

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)
Disposals during the year
Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079
Additions during the year

Acquisition

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)
Disposals during the year
Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

Accumulated amortization and impairment
As at Shrawan 1, 2078

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2078
Additions during the year
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079
Additions during the year
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

Net Carrying Amount
As on Ashadh 32, 2079
As on Ashadh 31, 2080

4,212,779

4,212,779

1,000,000

1,000,000

5,212,779

5,212,779

8,286,426

8,286,426

13,499,205

13,499,205

4,212,779

4,212,779

3,652

3,652

4,216,331

4,216,331

347,385

347,385

4,563,716

4,563,716

996,448

996,448

8,935,489

8,935,489
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
6 Investment Properties
Investment Properties at Cost
Particulars Land Building Total

Gross carrying amount
As at Shrawan 1, 2078 - - .
Additions during the year - - -
Acquisition - - -
Subsequent Expenditure - - -
Assets classified as held for sales - - -
Disposals during the year - - -
Revaluation/Adjustment - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079 - - -
Additions during the year - - -
Acquisition - - -
Subsequent Expenditure - - -
Assets classified as held for sales - - -
Disposals during the year - - -
Revaluation/Adjustment - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080 - - -

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at Shrawan 1, 2078 - - -
Depreciation during the year - - -
Disposals during the year - - -
Impairment during the year - - -
Transfer/Adjustments - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079 - - -
Depreciation during the year - - -
Disposals during the year - - -
Impairment during the year - - -
Transfer/Adjustments - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080 - - -

Capital Work-In-Progress
As on Shrawan 1, 2078 - - -
Additions during the year - - -
Capitalisation during the year - - -
Disposals during the year - - -
Impairment during the year - - -
Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079 - - -
Additions during the year - - -
Capitalisation during the year - - -
Disposals during the year - - -
Impairment during the year - - -
Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080 - - -

Net Carrying Amount
Net Balance As At Ashad 32, 2079 - - B
Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2080 - - .
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income - -
Profit from investment properties before depreciation - -
Depreciation charge - -
Profit from investment properties - -

(i) Fair value of investment properties:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Land = -
Building = -
Total - -

Notes on Fair Value :

The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties. The best evidence of fair value is
current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the Company
consider information from a variety of sources including :

i)  Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in
less active markets, adjusted to reflect those differences,

i) Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,

iii) Capitalised income projections based upon a property's estimated net market income, and a capitalization
rate derived from an analysis of market evidence.

(iv) Disclosure on restriction on the realisability of investment properties.

(v) Contractual obligations.

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Fig. in NPR

Investment Properties at Fair Value

Particulars Land Building Total

Gross carrying amount
As at Shrawan 1, 2078 - R .
Additions during the year - - -
Disposals during the year - - -
Net changes in Fair Value - - -
Revaluation/Adjustment - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079 - - -
Additions during the year - - -
Disposals during the year - - -
Net changes in Fair Value - - -
Revaluation/Adjustment - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080 - - -

Capital Work-In-Progress
As on Shrawan 1, 2078 - - -
Additions during the year - - -
Capitalisation during the year - - -
Disposals during the year - - -
Impairment during the year - - -
Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079 - - B
Additions during the year - - -
Capitalisation during the year - - -
Disposals during the year - - -
Impairment during the year - - -
Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080 - - B

Net Carrying Amount
Net Balance As At Ashad 32, 2079 - - -
Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2080 - - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
7 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Through SOPL | Through SOCI Total Through SOPL | Through SOCI Total

Intangible Assets (261,577) - (261,577) 310,504 - 310,504
Property and Equipment 2,877,561| (50,028,207) (47,150,646) 5,157,049 | (47,613,507) | (42,456,458)
Financial Assets at FVPTL - - - (10,290,211) - | (10,290,211)
Financial Assets at FVTOCI - (9,244,590) (9,244,590) - - -
Provision for Leave 10,444,738 3,145,787 13,590,525 10,168,157 2,235,557 12,403,714
Provision for Gratuity 12,017,473 - 12,017,473 12,017,473 - 12,017,473
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets - - - 634,769 - 634,769
Impairment Loss on Other Assets 11,046,941 - 11,046,941 13,903,604 - 13,903,604
Unearned Premiums Reserve 88,007 - 88,007 68,324 - 68,324
Incurred But Not Reported including IBNER 52,141,701 - 52,141,701 70,162,869 - 70,162,869
Margin For Adverse Deviation 3,078,838 - 3,078,838 3,944,033 - 3,944,033
Premium Deficiency Reserve 1,598,365 - 1,598,365 - - -
Carry forward of unused tax losses - - - - -
Changes in tax rate - - - - - -
Others (specify if any) - - - - - -
- Unamortized portion of Bond - - - 928,774 - 928,774
- Deferred Agency Commission (2,997,728) - (2,997,728) (2,685,538) - (2,685,538)
- Insurance Contract Liabilities net of

Insurance Assest - - - - -
- Lease Expenses (NFRS 16 Impact) 2,644,613 - 2,644,613 1,746,537 - 1,746,537
- Remeasurement of Post-Employment

Benefit Obligations - - - - - -
- Deferred Commission Income 54,269,120 - 54,269,120 69,822,685 - 69,822,685
- Provision for Other Loss 2,730,000 - 2,730,000 - - -
- Share of Net Profit of Associates using

Equity Method (1,143,521) 6,038 (1,137,483) (1,155,349) - (1,155,349)
Total 148,534,531|  (56,120,972) 92,413,559 174,733,680 (45,377,950) | 129,355,730
Deferred Tax Asstes - - 92,413,559 - - | 129,355,730
Deferred Tax Liabilities - - - - - -
Movements in deferred tax Assets/ (Liabilities)

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
SOPL SOCI Total SOPL SOCI Total
As at Shrawan 1, 2079 - - - - - -
Charged/(Credited) to Statement of
Profit or Loss 26,199,149 26,199,149 39,486,067 - | 39,486,067
Charged/(Credited) to Other
Comprehensive Income -| 10,743,022 10,743,022 - (26,443) (26,443)
As at Ashadh 31, 2080 26,199,149| 10,743,022 36,942,171 39,486,067 (26,443) | 39,459,624
8 Investment in Subsidiaries
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries = -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries = -
Less: Impairment Losses = -
Total - -
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Fig. in NPR

. Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs.......... each of .. Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
. Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs.......... each of .. Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -
Information Relating to Associates
Particulars Percentage of Ownership
Current Year |Previous Year
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Lid. - -
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltid. - -
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Lid. - -

9 Investment in Associates

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Investment in Quoted Associates - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates 72,891,606 52,951,163
Less: Impairment Losses = -
Total 72,891,606 52,951,163

Investment in Quoted Associates

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars

Cost Fair Value | (or) Equity Method Cost Fair Value | (or) Equity Method

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd. - -
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd. - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - -

Total

rance
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
Investment in Unquoted Associates
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars

Cost Fair Value | (or) Equity Method Cost Fair Value | (or) Equity Method
106,187 Shares of Rs 100 each of
Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited 9,100,000 9,100,000 9,100,000 9,100,000
600,000 Shares of Rs 100 each of
Kriti Venture Fund 60,000,000 60,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years 3,851,163 3,703,602
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year (39,427) 147,561
Add: Share of OCI Income /(loss) for
Current Year - (20,130) - -
Total 69,100,000 72,891,606 49,100,000 52,951,163

Information Relating to Associates

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year

Name Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited Kriti Venture Fund

Place of Business Kathmandu Kathmandu

Accounting Method Equity Equity

% of Ownership 3.97% 3.97% 20.00% 20.00%

Current Assets 205,772,506 212,681,344 199,104,340 63,469,175

Non-Current Assets 120,437,072 99,397,721 164,447,683 147,240,471

Current Liabilities 9,496,217 18,380,324 2,003,889 387,785

Non-Current Liabilities 17,136,746 2,102,915 - -

Income

Net Profit or Loss 9,224,727 1,628,327 (2,028,247) (361,827)

Other Comprehensive Income (507,061) - -

Total Comprehensive Income 8,717,666 1,628,327 (2,028,247) (361,827)

Company's share of profits

Net Profit or Loss 366,222 64,612 (405,649) (72,365)

Other Comprehensive Income (20,130) - - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

10 Investments

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investments measured at Amortised Cost
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
i) Investment in Debentures

iy Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

iv) Fixed Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions
v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks

vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions
vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions
viii) Investment in Gratuity Fund (CIT)

ix) Seed Money in Micro Insurance Pool

Less: Impairment Losses

Investments at FVTOCI

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds

iv) Investment in Debentures

v) Others ( to be Specified)

Investments at FVTPL

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds

iv) Others -Investment in CIT

Total

3,483,876,013 3,398,063,938
731,146,000 663,281,000
2,309,500,000 2,319,748,000
380,500,000 354,000,000
45,500,000 46,000,000
15,839,324 13,644,249
1,390,689 1,390,689
702,839,981 588,196,223
454,592,645 428,073,166
176,169,214 138,190,445
72,078,122 21,932,612
4,186,715,994 3,986,260,161

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be Specified)

Total

68hikhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
b) Investments having expected maturies less than 12 months:
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 454,592,645 428,073,166
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) - -
Investment in Mutual Funds 72,078,122 21,932,612
Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions = -
Investment in Debentures 731,146,000 663,281,000
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions 2,309,500,000 2,319,748,000
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks > -
Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions 380,500,000 354,000,000
Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions 45,500,000 46,000,000
Others -Investment in CIT - -
Total 3,993,316,767 3,833,034,778
c) Information relating to investment in equity instruments
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Quantity Cost Price Fair Value Cost Price Fair Value

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
Api Power Company Ltd. - - - 42,198.72 110,513
Agriculture Development Bank Limited. 2,431 1,076,520 568,611 1,076,520 788,773
Arun Valley Hydropower Development Company Limited. 2,171 1,182,746 706,605 2,020,637 1,431,878
Asian Life Insurance Company Limited 902 788,674 672,080 1,979,328 985,558
Bishal Bazar Company Ltd. 198 763,757 679,140 341,633 270,000
Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited 80 1,112,549 1,104,000 - -
Central Finance Company Ltd. - - - 1,524,623 650,508
Central Finance Company Ltd. Promoter Share 188,016 15,000,000 79,906,800 15,000,000 79,906,800
Chimmek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 2,498 2,704,775 2,498,000 4,645,282 3,424,300
Chilime Hydropower Company Limited. 1,001 547,190 537,237 - -
Citizen Investment Trust 1,300 2,976,090 2,715,700 1,983,576 1,566,845
Citizens Bank International Limited. 15,124 5,164,241 2,617,964 5,164,241 3,062,610
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 578 745,463 477,428 745,463 411,720
Everest Bank Limited. 20,687 19,486,007 11,646,781 19,486,007 8,036,773
Forward Microfinance Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. 6 3,389 7,926 - 7,155
Garima Bikash Bank Ltd. 7,342 3,425,678 2,973,510 3,728,342 2,360,700
Global IME Bank Limited. 5,860 2,358,591 1,089,960 2,358,603 1,430,215
Global IME Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 87 - 92,307 583,732 259,800
Himalayan Bank Limited. 3,470 928,200 738,416 966,630 876,921
Himalayan Distillery Limited. 2 3,556 4,496 2,897,845 2,646,160
Hydroelectricity Investment and

Develoment Company Ltd. (promoter) 9,000 929,520 925,200 704,700 400,000
Himalayan Life Insurance Limited. 1,679 1,067,063 851,253 1,380,021 945,066
ICFC Finance Limited. - - - 2,207,920 990,000
Jyoti Bikas Bank Limited. 9,277 4,192,276 2,764,546 5,487,580 3,510,657
Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Limited. 1 - 327 - 350
Kumari Bank Limited. 1,694 405,377 279,510 324,863 240,851
Kumari Bank Limited Promoter Share. 358,211 39,011,950 40,728,591 - -
Life Insurance Company Nepal. 1,062 1,859,339 1,651,410 2,598,368 1,857,895
Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited. 2 - 464 - 508
Manjushree Finance Limited. - - - 1,020,155 553,833
Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited. 4,229 2,193,613 1,721,203 2,193,615 1,635,714

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Quantity Cost Price Fair Value Cost Price Fair Value

Nabil Bank Limited. 792 749,763 474,566 749,763 550,432
National Hydropower Company Limited. 2,000 481,900 355,800 - -
NMB Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited. - - - 1,045,765 525,070
National Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited. - - - 1,597,105 1,151,325
National Life Insurance Company Limited. 6,232 4,937,161 4,019,640 6,565,482 3,625,291
Nepal Bank Limited. 1,686 807,661 419,814 807,656 492,594
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited. 18 18,637 16,324 312,295 276,854
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited. 1,080 493,830 241,920 493,830 259,200
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited. 41,732 10,698,027 7,253,072 10,698,359 10,633,945
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited Promoter Share. 7,262 2,437,941 1,117,622 2,301,906 1,693,378
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited. 735 489,429 546,840 1,671,042 876,978
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 1 - 341 - 282
NIC Asia Bank Limited. 6,942 5,833,771 5,510,560 6,065,265 4,608,912
NIC Asia Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1,339 1,647,000 976,131 1,807,137 1,007,803
NMB Bank Limited. 1 - 226 - -
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 2,510 2,730,780 1,920,150 4,821,507 3,986,073
Oriental Hotel Ltd. - - - 700,500 483,000
Prabhu Bank Limited. 8,604 2,317,779 1,399,010 2,794,610 1,792,206
Prabhu Bank Limited Promoter Share. 485,355 47,710,954 54,845,114 47,710,954 66,314,155
Prabhu Mahalaxmi Life Insurance Limited. 1,000 616,790 587,000 - -
Prime Commercial Bank Limited. 12,036 4,912,105 2,347,020 4,912,134 2,982,045
Ridi Power Company Limited. 2,780 867,944 675,540 - -
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 310 - 240,250 1,346,999 1,000,572
Sana Kisan Bikash Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 940 771,485 845,060 2,640,713 1,797,720
Salt Trading Corporation Limited. 39 158,797 191,061 - -
Sanima Bank Limited. 14,989 6,091,679 3,904,635 6,091,640 3,760,776
Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited. 4,725 2,251,467 1,677,375 1,880,417 1,139,850
Sanima Reliance Life Insurance Limited. 1,558 874,614 866,248 874,614 521,930
Shivam Cements Limited. 3,801 3,403,715 2,476,352 4,442,160 2,284,560
Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited. 1 228 384 561,063 442,645
Shreejansil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. 692 839,368 821,404 - -
Siddhartha Bank Ltd. 7,266 3,101,697 1,838,298 2,801,042 1,687,710
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd. 7,012 3,596,020 3,717,061 866,336 788,637
Super Madi Hydropower Limited. 1,000 455,840 422,000 - -
Laxmi Sunrise Bank Limited. 18,536 7,449,026 3,208,582 7,449,026 3,836,952
Suryajyoti Life Insurance Company Limited. 3,528 2,547,745 2,152,080 2,547,745 1,365,336
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. 1,846 2,007,444 1,662,508 1,888,559 1,261,351
Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. - - - - 65,527
Universal Power Company Limited. 3,000 829,260 657,000 629,316 353,090
Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd. 263,280 26,328,000 26,328,000 26,328,000 26,328,000
Nepal Reinsurance Co. Ltd. 1,618,784 162,262,129 | 162,262,129 | 161,816,865 161,816,865
Upakar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. 467 984,310 645,487 - -
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

Nepal Warehousing Ltd. 600,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
Lower Erkhuwa Hydropower Co. Ltd. 400,000 40,000,000 40,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
White Lotus Power Ltd. 138,892 13,889,214 13,889,214 10,000,000 10,000,000
Clean City Vehicle Service Ltd. 152,500 15,250,000 15,250,000 12,062,500 12,062,500
Sindhuli Agro Co. Ltd. 100,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000
Insurance Institute of Nepal. 47,800 4,780,000 4,780,000 1,195,000 1,195,000
Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd. 322,500 32,250,000 32,250,000 21,500,000 28,932,945
Total 4,933,079| 595,800,076 | 630,761,859 | 528,439,189 566,263,611

d) The company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR 2,383,000,000.00 to Nepal Insurance Authority.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

11 Loans

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loans measured at Amortised Cost
Loan to Employees

Others (to be Specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

a) Expected repayment of loan within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan to Employees
Others (to be Specified)
Total

12 Reinsurance Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Reinsurance Assets on:
Unearned Premiums
Premium Deficiency Reserve
IBNR and IBNER Claim
Outstanding Claims

Margin For Adverse Deviation
Less: Impairment Losses
Total

1,932,568,161
18,528,243
319,639,896
1,627,609,989
15,981,995

1,968,068,933
243,110,184
2,015,009,886
12,155,513

3,914,328,283

4,238,344,516

13 Insurance Receivables

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurer

Receivable from Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

212,353245| 552,338,036
748,863,474| 333,908,944
(36,823,135)| (33,874,654)
924,393,584 | 852,372,326

a) Expected receivable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurer 212,353,245 552,338,036
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies 748,863,474 300,034,290
Others( to be Specified) - -
Total 961,216,719 852,372,326
Shi kKhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
14 Other Assets

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Capital Advances - -
Prepaid Expenses 19,651,968 13,021,362
Claim Advances 93,085,688 120,106,815
Advance To Suppliers - -
VAT Receivable - -
Staff Advances 38,694,858 32,234,288
Printing and Stationary Stocks - -
Stamp Stocks - -
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses - -
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses 9,992,425 8,951,792
Lease Receivables - -
Other Receivable 1,738,182 223,413
Covid Insurance Claim Receivable 180,255,732 224,127,203
Less: Provision for doubtful debt - (2,115,898)
Total 343,418,853 396,548,975

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Capital Advances - -
Prepaid Expenses 19,651,968 13,021,362
Claim Advances 93,085,688 120,106,815
Advance To Suppliers - -
VAT Receivable - -
Staff Advances 38,694,858 32,234,288
Printing and Stationary Stocks - -
Stamp Stocks - -
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses - -
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses 9,992,425 8,951,792
Lease Receivables - -
Other Receivable 1,738,182 223,413
Covid Insurance Claim Recovery 180,255,732 224,127,203
Less: Provision for doubtful debt - (2,115,898)
Total 343,418,853 396,548,975

68hikhar
nsurance g,
+

appysmarance



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Other Financial Assets

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Security Deposits - -
Accured Interest 31,658,726 30,020,024
Other Receivables - -
Other Deposits 46,172,033 45,414,244
Sundry Debtors 3,063,264 4,258,927
Other -Bank Guarantee Margin 1,312,407 1,202,116
Subsidy Receivable 511,242,216 330,647,402
Advance Against Investment 1,600,000 -
Less: Provision for other losses - -
Total 595,048,646 411,542,713

a) Expected maturies within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Security Deposits

Accured Interest

Other Receivables

Other Deposits

Sundry Debtors

Other -Bank Guarantee Margin
Subsidy Receivable

Advance Against Investment
Less: Provision for other losses
Total

31,658,726

30,020,024

46,172,033 45,414,244
3,063,264 4,258,927
1,312,407 1,202,116

511,242,216 | 330,647,402
1,600,000 -
595,048,646 | 411,542,713

16 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Cash in Hand 207,384 96,256
Cheque in Hand - -
Bank Balances - -
i) Balance With"A" Class Financial Institutions 88,973,816 267,151,516
ii) Balance With Infrastructure Banks - -
iii) Balance With"B" Class Financial Institutions 21,374,057 35,710,774
iv) Balance With"C" Class Financial Institutions 6,191,850 12,081,072
Less: Impairment Losses = -
Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months - -
Others ( Gold Coins) 1,105,887 1,020,985
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 117,852,994 316,060,603
Shi khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

17 (a) Share Capital

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue

ii) Right Share Issue

As at Ashadh 31, 2080

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2080

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2080

Total

2,286,081,200

368,866,100

1,758,524,000

527,557,200

2,654,947,300

2,286,081,200

(i) Ordinary Shares

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

40,000,000 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Issued Capital:

26,549,473 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
26,549,473 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Total

4,000,000,000

2,654,947,300

2,654,947,300

4,000,000,000

2,286,081,200

2,286,081,200

2,654,947,300

2,286,081,200

(ii) Preference Share Capital

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Authorised Capital:
........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
Issued Capital:
........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
Total - -

68hikhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(iii) Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Fig. in NPR

Number of Shares

Percentage

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Promoters
Government of Nepal

2,350,339

2,026,155

8.86%

8.86%

Nepali Organized Institutions

Nepali Citizens 11,189,891 9,632,859 42.14% 42.14%
Foreigners -

Others ( to be Specified)

Total (A) 13,540,230 11,659,014 51.00% 51.00%
Other than Promoters

General Public 13,009,243 11,201,798 49.00% 49.00%
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (B) 13,009,243 11,201,798 49.00% 49.00%
Total (A+B) 26,549,473 22,860,812 100.00% 100%

Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Number of Shares

Percentage

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Bikash Jung Bahadur Rana
Buddha Air Pvt. Ltd.
Gaurav Agrawal

Kailash Prasad Sirohiya
Pabitra Kumar Karki
Shekhar Basnet

Rajendra Prasad Shrestha
Lomus Investment Pvt. Ltd.
Jitendra Baheti

Kiran Prakash Pandey
Pawan Kumar Agrawal
Shashikanta Agrawal
Chanda Sherpa

Birendra Bahadur Basnet

953,744
1,639,501
3,271,999

973,637

444,810

278,015

968,277

712,837

376,112

298,909

457,372
1,149,485
1,694,701

491,852

922,965
1,412,163
2,817,418

838,556

383,131

239,464

834,013

613,992

332,893

276,684

393,947

989,523
1,524,472

423,650

4.04%
6.18%
12.32%
3.67%
1.68%
1.05%
3.65%
2.69%
1.46%
1.13%
1.72%
4.33%
6.38%
1.85%

4.04%
6.18%
12.32%
3.67%
1.68%
1.05%
3.65%
2.69%
1.46%
1.21%
1.72%
4.33%
6.67%
1.85%

17(b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Total

17 (c) Share Premium

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
As on Shrawan 1, 2079 160,902,639 95,712,963
Increase due to issue of shares at premium - 65,189,676
Decrease due to issue of bonus shares (160,902,639) -
Transaction costs on issue of share - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
As on Ashadh 31, 2080 - 160,902,639
Shijkhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

17 (d) Special Reserves

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2079
Additions

Utilizations

As on Ashadh 31, 2080

1,335,849,418

1,210,908,307

126,473,312

124,941,111

1,462,322,730

1,335,849,418

17 (e) Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions

Utilizations (Transfer to Retained Earnings)
As on Ashadh 31, 2080

125,669,741| 110,818,388

12,678,439 14,851,353
(22,727,272) -
115,620,908 | 125,669,741

Out of total covid claim paid, the company's share Rs 22,272,272 has been transferred to retained earining from
catastrophe reserve as per the instruction/circular issued by Nepal Insurance Authority.

17 (f) Retained Earnings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2079

Opening Adjustment

Restated Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2079

Net Profit or Loss

Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations
Transfer to reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Special Reserves

Capital Reserves

Catastrophe Reserves

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves
Insurance Fund including Insurance Reserves

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserves

Other Reserve

Share Premium

Transfer from Catastrophe Reserves

Transfer from Regulatory Reserve

Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property and Equipment

Transfer of Disposal of Revalued Property and Equipment

Transfer of Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI

Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of Shares
Dividend Paid

Cash Dividend (Dividend Distribution Tax)
Others -Prior Period Expenses

As on Ashadh 31, 2080

273,666,342
(34,300,703)
239,365,639
226,125,314

(126,162,231)

186,621,189

186,621,189
273,164,331

(124,941,111

)
)

(12,616,223)| (14,851,353

(2,523,245)|  (2,731,643)
(9,240,879) -
(19,178,801) |  (39,459,624)
160,902,639 -
22,727,272 -
242,643 -
(368,866,100) -
(1,905,759)|  (2,498,958)
(19,414,005) -
-l (1,636,489)
89,456,264 | 273,666,342
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

17 (g) Other Equity

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Revaluation Reserves 401,411,383 395,777,083
Capital Reserves - -
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves 257,011 2,731,643
Insurance Fund including Insurance Reserves - -
Regulatory Reserves - 622,162
Fair Value Reserves 21,570,710 (9,240,879)
Actuarial Reserves (7,340,170) (5,216,299)
Deferred Tax Reserve 148,534,531 129,355,730
Other Reserve-Investment in Associates (14,091) -
Total 564,419,374 514,029,440

18 Provisions

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Provision for employee benefits
i) Provision for Leave 34,815,792 29,697,441
ii) Provision for Gratuity 40,058,242 40,058,242
i) Termination Benefits - -
iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations- Bonus 48,614,346 91,578,363
Provision for tax related legal cases = -
Provision for non-tax legal cases = -
Others-Provision for losses for Investment 9,100,000 12,470,694
Total 132,588,380 173,804,740
(a) Movement of Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Description (B)Peﬂing Additions Utilised Reversed Unwinding of Closing
alance During the Year | During the Year | During the Year Discount Balance
Provision for employee benefits
i) Provision for Leave
i) Provision for Gratuity
iii) Termination Benefits
iv) Other Employee Benefit
obligations (to be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases
Provision for non-tax legal cases
Others (to be Specified)

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provision for emoloyee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

ii) Provision for Gratuity

ii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations( to be Specified)
Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases
Others-Provision for losses for Investment

34,815,792 29,697,441
40,058,242 40,058,242
48,614,346 91,578,363
9,100,000 12,470,694
132,588,380 173,804,740

19 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unearned Premiums
Premium Deficiency Reserve
IBNR and IBNER
Outstanding Claims

Margin For Adverse Deviation
Total

2,649,963,179
23,856,125
524,895,768
1,837,278,004
26,244,788

2,629,053,695
1,038,992
509,554,513
2,232,130,557
25,302,290

5,062,237,863

5,397,080,047
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

20 Insurance Payable

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurer

Payable to Other Insurance Companies

Withdrawal Premium
Withdrawal Claims

Others -Payable to Local Reinsurers

Total

37,693,031 204,852,998
83,612,704 40,259,186
121,305,735 245,112,184

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurer

Payable to other Insurance Companies

Withdrawal Premium
Withdrawal Claims
Others (to be Specified)
Total

37,693,031 204,852,998
83,612,704 40,259,186
121,305,735 245,112,184

21 Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Income Tax Liabilities 233,818,987 141,847,500
Income Tax Assets 239,737,332 242,072,581
Total 5,918,345 100,225,081
22 Borrowings

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Bonds
Debentures

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution

Bank Overdrafts
Others -Short term loan
Total

147,801,819

200,228,619

147,801,819

200,228,619

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bonds
Debentures

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution

Bank Overdrafts
Others (to be Specified)
Total

147,801,819

200,228,619

147,801,819

200,228,619
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Other Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 10,676,673 23,220,836
VAT Payable 59,021,931 31,604,604
Unidentified deposits 7,595,526 9,520,997
Advance Premiums - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 41,634,309 46,382,472
Lease Liability 85,690,641 98,616,788
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income 180,897,068 232,742,282
Deferred Income - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 385,516,148 442,087,979

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 10,676,673 23,220,836
VAT Payable 59,021,931 31,604,604
Unidentified Deposits 7,595,526 9,520,997
Advance Premiums - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 41,634,309 46,382,472
Lease Liability 85,690,641 98,616,788
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income 180,897,068 232,742,282
Deferred Income - -
Others(to be specified) - -
Total 385,516,148 442,087,979

24 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares - -
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares - -
Refundable Share Application Money 209,000 209,000
Payable to Insured 23,051,517 17,222,751
Payable to Agents 10,907,524 9,903,188
Payable to Surveyor 19,075,858 12,968,646
Sundry Creditors 51,324,195 17,944,048
Retention and deposits - -
Short-term employee benefits payable - -
i) Salary Payables 1,703,717 21,979,469
ii) Bonus Payables 12,718,032 8,772,313
ii) Other employee benefit payable 19,456,503 20,459,215
Audit Fees Payable 501,750 362,375
Actuarial Fees Payable - -
Dividend Payable - -
Others- Claims Paybable 168,398,600 -
Total 307,346,696 109,821,005
Continue...
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Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares
Refundable Share Application Money

Payable to Insured
Payable to Agents
Payable to Surveyor
Sundry Creditors

Retention and deposits

Short-term employee benefits payable
i) Salary Payables

ii) Bonus Payables

iii) Other employee benefit payable
Audit Fees Payable

Actuarial Fees Payable

Dividend Payable

Others Claims Payable

Total

Fig. in NPR
Current Year | Previous Year
209,000 209,000
23,051,517 17,222,751
10,907,524 9,903,188
19,075,858 12,968,646
51,324,195 17,944,048
1,703,717 21,979,469
12,718,032 8,772,313
19,456,503 20,459,215
501,750 362,375
168,398,600 -
307,346,696 109,821,005

25 Gross Earned Premiums

. . Premium on Reinsurance Gross Change in .
Particulars Pirect Premiums Accepted Unearned Pre?nium Gross Earned Premiums

Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 1,164,803,837 | 1,105,923,859 - 257,445 | (99,830,516) (18,115,817)(1,064,973,321 | 1,088,065,487
Motor 1,226,515,870 | 1,324,460,050 | 212,520,162 208,963,140 | 152,075,063 (19,135,356) | 1,591,111,095| 1,514,287,834
Marine 294,259,528 | 361,715,582 - -| 202,669,479 (91,262,481)| 496,929,007 270,453,101
Engineering 1,187,079,760 | 902,723,977 - - | (146,764,119) | (341,283,436)|1,040,315,641 561,440,541
Micro 5,437,043 4,412,045 - 83,123 (186,251) 42,142,042 5,250,792 46,637,210
Aviation 112,606,700 | 136,854,775 - - 12,124,038 66,159,976 124,730,738 203,014,751
Cattle and Crop | 582,101,657 | 371,610,500 - -| (105,245,579) (71,720,604)| 476,856,078 299,889,896
Miscellaneous | 531,828,064 | 458,821,969 - - (35,751,599) (49,967,428)| 496,076,465| 408,854,541
Total 5,104,632,459 | 4,666,522,757 | 212,520,162 209,303,708 | (20,909,484)| (483,183,104)|5,296,243,137 | 4,392,643,361

25.1 Direct Premiums

Particulars New Business Premium Renewal Premium Co-Insurance Premium Total Direct Premium
Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 1,164,803,837 | 1,105,923,859 - - - -(1,164,803,837 | 1,105,923,859
Motor 1,226,515,870 | 1,324,460,050 - - - -(1,226,515,870 | 1,324,460,050
Marine 294,259,528 | 361,715,582 - - - -| 294,259,528 361,715,582
Engineering 1,187,079,760 | 902,723,977 - - - -(1,187,079,760 902,723,977
Micro 5,437,043 4,412,045 - - - - 5,437,043 4,412,045
Aviation 112,606,700 | 136,854,775 - - - -| 112,606,700 136,854,775
Cattle and Crop | 582,101,657 | 371,610,500 - - - -| 582,101,657 371,610,500
Miscellaneous | 531,828,064 | 458,821,969 - - - -| 531,828,064 458,821,969
Total 5,104,632,459 | 4,666,522,757 -15,104,632,459  4,666,522,757
68hi khar
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26 Premiums Ceded

Fig. in NPR

PremiL!m Ceded to Reinsurer's Share ofphange in Premium Ceded
Reinsurers Unearned Premiums
Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year |Current Year | Previous Year
Property 1,000,483,284| 1,042,956,591 (48,291,747) (32,822,259)| 952,191,537 | 1,010,134,332
Motor 414,202,969| 737,220,475 260,814,041 (73,702,164)| 675,017,010| 663,518,311
Marine 243,176,310 215,524,583 129,841,490 (42,069,309)| 373,017,800| 173,455,274
Engineering 1,182,098,632| 816,883,296 | (187,193,896) (298,467,053)| 994,904,736 | 518,416,243
Micro 4179,113 882,409 (1,591,414) 30,048,746 2,587,699 30,931,155
Aviation 105,673,369 117,733,259 7,869,894 71,851,607 | 113,543,263 | 189,584,866
Cattle and Crop 466,934,610 297,319,286 (84,181,021) (57,475,601)| 382,753,589 | 239,843,685
Miscellaneous 466,201,013| 376,284,218 (41,766,575) (44,064,485)| 424,434,438 | 332,219,733
Total 3,882,949,300| 3,604,804,117 35,500,772 (446,700,518)  3,918,450,072 | 3,158,103,599

26.1 Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premiums

Gross Earned Premiums Premium Ceded Net Earned Premium
Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 1,064,973,321| 1,088,065,487 952,191,537 1,010,134,332| 112,781,784 77,931,155
Motor 1,591,111,095| 1,514,287,834 675,017,010 663,518,311 916,094,085 850,769,523
Marine 496,929,007 270,453,101 373,017,800 173,455,274 | 123,911,207 96,997,827
Engineering 1,040,315,641 561,440,541 994,904,736 518,416,243 45,410,905 43,024,298
Micro 5,250,792 46,637,210 2,587,699 30,931,155 2,663,093 15,706,055
Aviation 124,730,738| 203,014,751 113,543,263 189,584,866 | 11,187,475 13,429,885
Cattle and Crop 476,856,078 299,889,896 382,753,589 239,843,685 94,102,489 60,046,211
Miscellaneous 496,076,465 408,854,541 424,434,438 332,219,733 71,642,027 76,634,808
Total 5,296,243,137( 4,392,643,361| 3,918,450,072 3,158,103,599 | 1,377,793,065 | 1,234,539,762

27 Commission Income

Reinsurance Commission Deferred Commission . - ..
oriculare Income Income Profit Commission Commission Income
Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 206,831,088 | 222,560,426 9,641,890 (3,067,230) 24,959,461 13,281,500 | 241,432,439 232,774,696
Motor 66,405,753 | 212,342,583 49,416,553 (25,646,062) 14,675,101 23,375,440| 130,497,407 210,071,961
Marine 35,603,840 39,195,277 1,184,068 1,531,819 2,374,732 3,187,560 39,162,640 43,914,656
Engineering 64,959,328 42,524,494 (7,403,495) (5,875,404) - -| 57,555,833 36,649,090
Micro 648,862 - (214,124) 4,199 - 434,738 4,199
Aviation - 29,146,912 9,609,699 (5,660,673) - 9,609,699 23,486,239
Cattle and Crop | 79,378,884 50,531,460 (9,519,650) (6,937,343) -] 69,859,234 43,594,117
Miscellaneous 98,125,519 95,489,981 (869,727) (19,906,402) - -| 97,255,792 75,583,579
Total 551,953,274 | 691,791,133 51,845,214 (65,557,096) 42,009,295 39,844,500 645,807,783 666,078,537
S hi khar
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28 Other Direct Income

Fig. in NPR

) Other Direct Income Other (to be Specified) Total Other Direct Income

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property - - - -
Motor 11,496,813 10,026,779 11,496,813 10,026,779
Marine - - - -
Engineering - - - -
Micro 1,865,563 4,370,924 1,865,563 4,370,924
Aviation - - - -
Cattle and Crop
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total 13,362,376 14,397,703 13,362,376 14,397,703

29 Income from Investments & Loans

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Interest Income from Financial Assets Designated at Amortised Costs
i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

i) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

iii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions

iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Institutions

v) Debentures

vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
vii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit

xiii) Employee Loans

ix) Other Interest Income ( CIT)

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI

i) Interest Income on Debentures

i) Dividend Income

iii) Other Interest Income (to be specified)

Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Interest Income on Debentures

i) Dividend Income

iii) Other Interest Income ( to be specified)
Rental Income

Others-Miscellaneous Income

Total

231,090,488 | 143,800,752
37,214,051- 22,061,014:
4,637,420 3,211,307
69,030,521 61,629,531
8,838,20(; 4,033,902
1,306,154; 1,016,43(;
5,385,412- 7,648,182-
17,891,025- 17,341,997-
375,393,271- 260,743,121-
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30 Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments

i) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges
Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges
Gains/(Losses) of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges

Other (to be Specified)

Total

31 Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments

i) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of
Financial Assets at Amortised Costs

i) Debentures

i) Bonds

iii) Others (to be specified)

(16,560,007)

3,214,888
85,200

Total

(16,560,007)

3,300,088

32 Other Income

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
i) Employee Loan

i) Bonds

iii) Others (to be specified)

Foreign Exchange Income

Interest Income from Finance Lease
Amortization of Deferred Income

Profit from disposal of Property and Equipment
Amortization of Deferred Income

Stamp Income

Others

- Provision written back

- Miscellaneous

Total

2,064,367 597,565
39,361,246 -
11,064,064 54,587,305
52,489,677 55,184,870

The company written back provison amount Rs 39,361,246 which was created against insurance receivable

based on the ageing in previous years.
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Fig. in NPR
33 Gross Claims Paid and Claims Ceded
Gross Claims Paid Claims Ceded Net Claims Paid
Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 410,019,326 498,823,656 284,401,253 395,779,999 125,618,073 | 103,043,657
Motor 1,103,574,227| 1,056,590,705 350,452,688 288,148,367 753,121,539| 768,442,338
Marine 115,702,818 103,408,226 101,300,456 91,101,087 14,402,362 12,307,139
Engineering 86,705,856 113,510,382 61,020,803 108,194,388| 25,685,053 5,315,994
Micro 27,431,031 42,237,551 3,488,255 41,826,551| 23,942,776 411,000
Aviation - - - - - -
Cattle and Crop 519,189,696 233,415,268 415,334,307 186,646,812| 103,855,389 46,768,456
Miscellaneous 412,321,645 333,596,229 338,601,144 229,135,983 73,720,501 | 104,460,246
Total 2,674,944,599( 2,381,582,017| 1,554,598,906 1,340,833,187(1,120,345,693 | 1,040,748,830

33.1 Details of Gross Claim Paid

Claim Paid Survey Fees Total Claims Paid
Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 410,019,326 498,823,656 -| 410,019,326 | 498,823,656
Motor 1,103,574,227| 1,056,590,705 -1,103,574,227 | 1,056,590,705
Marine 115,702,818| 103,408,226 -| 115,702,818 | 103,408,226
Engineering 86,705,856 113,510,382 -| 86,705,856 | 113,510,382
Micro 27,431,031 42,237,551 -l 27,431,031 42,237,551
Aviation - - - - -
Cattle and Crop 519,189,696 233,415,268 -| 519,189,696 | 233,415,268
Miscellaneous 412,321,645 333,596,229 -| 412,321,645| 333,596,229
Total 2,674,944,599| 2,381,582,017 -12,674,944,599 | 2,381,582,017

34 Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities

Gross Change in Insurance

Change in Reinsurance

Net Change in Insurance

Particulars Contract Liabilities Assets Contract Liabilities

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property (194,670,538)| 166,471,961 (179,701,773) 130,789,876 | (14,968,765) 35,682,085
Motor (36,154,746) 56,525,639 20,694,254 72,453,719 (56,849,000) | (15,928,080)
Marine (2,825,792) 4,705,663 (1,908,472) 3,098,659 (917,320) 1,607,004
Engineering 21,424,775 26,606,103 24,394,434 26,963,214  (2,969,660) (357,111)
Micro (231,333,605)| (114,490,166) |  (231,236,623) (114,963,931) (96,982) 473,765
Aviation (7,482,086)| (47,381,172) (7,677,893) (45,629,700) 195,807 (1,751,472)
Cattle and Crop 71,440,795 9,827,796 62,092,283 6,845,070 9,348,512 2,982,726
Miscellaneous 23,849,529 (2,315,598) 24,828,329 (9,003,572) (978,800) 6,687,974
Total (355,751,668) 99,950,226 | (288,515,461) 70,553,335( (67,236,207) 29,396,891
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35 Commission Expenses
Commission Expenses | Commission Expenses on Premium|  Deferred Commission Total Commission
Particulars on Direct Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted Expenses Expenses
Current Year|Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year |Current Year| Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 7,952,959 8,234,768 (29,679) 45,549 273,635 258,979 8,196,915 8,539,296
Motor 6,763,964 7,675,009 - - 165,366 215,247 6,929,330 7,890,256
Marine 712,631 891,480 - - 59,020 21,712 771,651 913,192
Engineering 1,864,200 1,873,990 - - 3,231 57,159 1,867,431 1,931,149
Micro 309,955 231,367 - - (25,934) (75,690) 284,021 155,677
Aviation - - - - - - - -
Cattle and Crop 6,295,528 1,630,555 - -1 (1,539,441) 128,650 4,756,087 1,759,205
Miscellaneous 5,970,905 5,160,427 6,898 881,662 23,490 (605,690) 6,001,293 5,436,399
Total 29,870,142 25,697,596 (22,781) 927,211 | (1,040,633) 367 28,806,728 26,625,174
36 Service Fees
Service Fees Reinsurer's Share of Service Fees Net Service Fees
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year |Current Year | Previous Year
Property 9,359,400 11,061,813 8,034,946 10,429,566 1,324,454 632,247
Motor 11,562,904 15,334,232 3,328,193 7,372,205 8,234,711 7,962,027
Marine 2,364,426 3,617,156 1,953,964 2,155,246 410,462 1,461,910
Engineering 9,538,391 9,027,240 9,498,367 8,168,833 40,024 858,407
Micro 43,688 44,952 33,580 8,824 10,108 36,128
Aviation 904,814 1,368,548 849,104 1,177,333 55,710 191,215
Cattle and Crop 4,677,288 3,716,105 3,751,900 2,973,193 925,388 742,912
Miscellaneous 4,273,331 4,588,220 3,750,131 3,762,842 523,200 825,378
Total 42,724,242 48,758,266 31,200,185 36,048,042 11,524,057 12,710,224

Service fee of 1% in premium collected till kartik 22,2079 and thenafter 0.5% in micro insurance and 0.75% in
other insurance portfolio is recognised.

37 Other Direct Expenses

) Other Direct Expenses Other (to be Specified) Total Other Direct Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year |Current Year | Previous Year

Property - - - - -
Motor 13,450,643 13,225,515 - -1 13,450,643 13,225,515
Marine - - - - -
Engineering - - - - - -
Micro 214,445 153 - 214,445 153
Aviation - - - - -
Cattle and Crop 3,135,620 3,367,601 - - 3,135,620 3,367,601
Miscellaneous - - - - - -
Total 16,800,708 16,593,269 16,800,708 16,593,269
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38 Employee Benefits Expenses

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Salaries

Allowances

Festival Allowances
Medical Allowamces
Defined Benefit Plans

i) Gratuity

i) Leave

Defined Contribution Plans
i) Provident Fund/ Social Security Fund
i) Gratuity

Leave Encashments
Termination Benefits
Training Expenses
Uniform Expenses

Staff Medical Expenses
Staff Insurance Expenses
Staff Welfare

Vehicle Allowance

Other Allowances

Sub Total

Employees Bonus

Total

135,264,564 119,653,847
190,830,709 | 188,695,618
26,145,423 22,329,676
23,218,822 11,581,064
27,051,063 23,904,387
3,094,941 5,621,717
8,986,752 7,805,870
6,299,712 4,518,047
10,652,017 10,061,270
9,966,779 14,527,128
20,799,317 19,571,991
5,096,337 740,724
467,406,436 | 429,011,339
48,614,345 40,803,721
516,020,781 469,815,060

39 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Amortization of goodwill & Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4)
Depreciation on Property and Equipment (Refer Note.5)
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note. 6)
Total

347,385 3,552
36,503,009 32,608,745
36,850,394 32,612,297
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40 Impairment Losses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Impairment Losses on Property and Equiment, Investment
Properties and Goodwill & Intangible Assets

i) Property and Equipment - -

ii) Investment properties
iii) Goodwill & Intangible Asssets

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets
i) Investments

i) Loans

ii) Other Financial Assets

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents

v) Others ( Investment in MCL)

Impairment Losses on Other Assets
i) Reinsurance Assets

ii) Insurance Receivables

iii) Lease Receivables

iv) Others (Doubtful Debt)

Total

36,823,135

9,100,000

18,944,314

36,823,135

28,044,314

41 Other Operating Expenses

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Rent Expenses 21,394,639 18,921,848
Electricity and Water 7,129,991 4,214,811
Repair & Maintenance
i) Building 961,669 27,505
ii) Vehicle 2,583,434 2,925,457
i) Office Equipments 648,800 1,439,225
iv) Others (to be Specified) 2,221,738 3,035,873
Telephone & Communication 12,020,268 10,372,784
Printing & Stationary 18,723,172 15,290,030
Office Consumable Expenses 12,011,508 8,618,452
Travelling Expenses
i) Domestic 4,268,976 3,223,465
ii) Foreign 1,022,000 946,823
Transportation & Fuel Expenses 25,374,973 18,078,874
Agent Training - -
Other Agent Expenses - -
Insurance Premium 6,519,434 5,679,798
Security & Outsourcing Expenes 5,780,584 4,844,793
Legal and Consulting Expenses 8,776,271 16,125,999
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 138,585 188,512
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 20,999,177 19,497,251
Business Promotion 6,911,740 7,115,787
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41 Other Operating Expenses

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Guest Entertainment

Gift and Donations

Board Meeting Fees and Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances

ii) Other Allowances

Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances

ii) Other Allowances

Annual General Meeting Expenses
Actuarial Service Fee

Other Actuarial Expenses

Audit Related Expenses

i) Statutory Audit

ii) Tax Audit

ii) Long Form Audit Report

iv) Other Fees

v) Internal Audit

vi) Other -Audit Expenses

Bank Charges

Fee and Charges

Postage Charges

Foreign Exchange Losses

Fines and Penalties

Others (to be Specified)
Membership and subscription fees
Pooja expenses

Notice Expenses
Miscellaneous

Computer support service
Other Program Expenses
Ghumti Beema

CSR Expenses

. Rate and Duties

Total

T T@ ™0 o0 T

1,591,615 3,064,820
545,044 2,332,356
2,564,000 1,980,000
839,446 765,919
2,142,873 1,937,400
388,967 201,892
3,439,928 -
2,206,772 1,097,498
325,000 325,000
75,000 75,000
50,000 50,000
1,480,174 780,760
500,000 500,000
1,219,736 762,793
1,508,380 883,156
4,771,352 3,450,976
15,238,354 -
110,000 451,330
651,009 584,214
754,567 955,801
1,289,932 2,008,779
4,495,253 2,897,471
8,499,947 2,526,397
396,315 -
2,575,182 1,609,515
5,651,837 3,619,449
220,797,642 173,407,813

42 Finance Cost

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - Bonds

Interest Expenses - Debentures

Interest Expenses - Term Loans

Interest Expenses - Leases

Interest Expenses - Overdraft Loans

Others (to be Specified)

Total

9,215,004

10,392,840

32,155,352 13,610,183
41,370,356 24,003,023
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Fig. in NPR

43 Income Tax Expense

(a) Income Tax Expense

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Current Tax
i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year 149,505,967 141,847,500
i) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods 84,313,020 948,606
Deferred Tax For The Year
i)  Originating and reversal of temporary differences 26,199,149 | (35,525,690)
ii) Changes in tax rate - -
iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
iv) Write-down or reversal - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - -
Income Tax Expense 260,018,136 107,270,416

i) Income tax relating to prior period relates to tax provision of Rs 84,313,020 which is paid by the company
after the reporting date for the tax on bonus share of Rs 281,043,400 disrtibuted by the company in
FY 2072/73 as bonus share from the share premium amount collected through further public offering
in FY 2071/72 as per section 26 of the Finance Act, 2080. The company filed a petition against the
provision of section 26 of the Finance Act, 2080 after the reporting date, however the petition was
repealed by the Honorable Supreme Court and accordingly company has paid income tax Rs 84,313,020
as per the decision of the board of directors of the company.

ii) Share premium of Rs 95,712,963 and Rs 65,189,676 in aggregate of Rs 160,902,639 collected through
auction of unsubscribed right shares in FY 2077/78 and FY 2078/79 respectively was distributed as
bonus share in FY 2079/80 through the decision of 17th and 18th Annual General Meeting. The income
tax liability of Rs 48,270,792 arise on such distribution as bonus share has been recognised as per

Income Tax Act 2058.
(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & the Accounting Profit

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Accounting Profit Before Tax 486,143,450 367,233,491
Applicable Tax Rate 30% 30%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 145,843,035 110,170,047
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose
i) Donation 163,513 699,707
i) Inadmissible Expenses 772,555 583,251
iii) Unabsorbed repairs - 36,365
iv) Depreciation as per books 11,055,118 8,752,291
v) Provision for leave 625,275 2,434,599
v) Provision for Doubtfuldebt 11,046,941 -
vi) Tax effect of bonus share distributed from share premium 48,270,792 -
Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction - -
i) Dividend Income (1,615,624) (2,294,455)
i) Provision written back (11,808,374) (4,479,102)
iii) Depreciation as per the Act (9,160,812) (8,928,539)
iv) (Profit) Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset (619,310) (143,228)
Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods - 948,606
Add/ (Less): Others (to be Specified) - -
i)  Adjustment for Liabilities (45,067,142) 35,016,564
i) Fine and Penalties - -
Income Tax Expense 149,505,967 142,796,106
Effective Tax Rate 31% 39%
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Employee Retirement Benefits

a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2080 (16th July, 2023) the company has recognised an amount of NPR.
3,014,6004.00 as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Home Leave

Sick Leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current service cost

Past service cost

Net interest cost

a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO)

b. Interest (income) on plan assets

c. Total net interest cost

Net Actuarial Losses/(Gains) Recognised during the period
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss

4,636,651 4,323,211 2,031,720 1,994,255
1,748,087 1,282,035 861,949 731,008
6,384,738 5,605,246 2,893,669 2,725,263

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption
changes in DBO (1,397,247) (2,552,890) (634,009) (1,223,745)
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO (143,094) 28,408,901 (64,455) 1,932,694
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to demographic assumptions 4,104,309 (19,400,630) 1,168,597 287,526
d. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate - -
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI 2,563,968 6,455,381 470,133 996,475
e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 6,384,738 5,605,246 2,893,669 2,725,263
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI 2,563,968 6,455,381 470,133 996,475
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 8,948,706 12,060,627 3,363,802 3,721,738
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 20,010,059 17,691,269 9,687,382 8,654,517
Service cost 4,636,651 4,323,211 2,031,720 1,994,255
Interest cost 1,748,087 1,282,035 861,949 731,008
Benefit payments from plan assets (5,058,375) (9,741,837) (2,135,782) (2,688,873)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions (1,397,247) (2,552,890) (634,009) (1,223,745)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - demographic assumptions 4,104,309 (19,400,630) 1,168,597 287,526
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience (143,094) 28,408,901 (64,455) 1,932,694
Defined Benefit Obligation As At Year End 23,900,390 20,010,059 10,915,402 9,687,382

dg) Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets

Home Leave Sick Leave

Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year - - - -
Expected return on plan assets = - - .
Employer contributions - - - -
Participant contributions = - - .
Benefit payments from plan assets = - - .
Transfer in/ transfer out - - - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - - - -
Fair value of Plan Assets At End of Year - - = -

h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)

Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined Benefit Obligation 23,900,390 20,010,059 10,915,402 9,687,382
Fair Value of Plan Assets - - - -
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of
Financial Position 23,900,390 20,010,059 10,915,402 9,687,382

i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year

Home Leave Sick Leave

Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Expected company contributions for the next year - - - -
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of
Financial Position - - - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
i) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 20,010,059 17,691,269 9,687,382 8,654,517
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 6,384,738 5,605,246 2,893,669 2,725,263
Total remeasurements included in OCI 2,563,968 6,455,381 470,133 996,475
Acquisition/ divestment - - - -
Employer contributions (5,058,375) (9,741,837) (2,135,782) (2,688,873)
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 23,900,390 20,010,059 10,915,402 9,687,382
k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Home Leave Sick Leave

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period

2,563,968

470,133

996,475

Total remeasurements included in OCI 6,455,381
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss 2,563,968 6,455,381 470,133 996,475
I) Current/Non - Current Liability
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Liability 3,744,502 2,624,080 1,726,919 1,271,202
Non - Current Liability 20,155,888 17,385,979 9,188,483 8,416,179
Total 23,900,390 20,010,059 10,915,402 9,687,381
m) Expected Future Benefit Payments
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Within 1 year 3,927,267 2,886,489 1,811,208 1,398,323
Between 1-2 years 3,363,853 3,079,559 1,534,038 1,518,450
Between 2-5 years 9,128,151 7,554,801 4,168,973 3,652,265
From 6 years and beyond 30,431,324 30,431,324 155,564,388 14,492,078
Total 46,850,595 43,952,173 163,079,107 21,061,116
n) Plan assets
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

Government Securities (Central and State)
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds)
Mutual Funds

Deposits

Cash and bank balances

Others (to be Specified)

Total

68hikhar
nsurance

ﬂ?f?t’.‘h}‘ﬂntﬂ

| 88

Continue...



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
o) Sensitivity Analysis
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Discount Rate 22,669,140 18,944,580 10,356,051 9,176,379
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Discount Rate 25,276,487 21,204,314 11,540,140 10,259,489
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Salary Escalation Rate 25,297,638 21,213,396 11,549,412 10,263,364
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate 22,630,408 18,918,506 10,338,742 9,164,292
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Attrition Rate 24,179,567 20,010,059 11,041,181 9,764,541
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Attrition Rate 23,591,220 20,012,909 10,776,236 9,601,743
p) Assumptions
Particulars Home Leave Sick Leave
Discount Rate 10.00% 10.00%
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 8.00% 8.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment NALM 2009 NALM 2009

45 Fair Value Measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial
Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost
and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Level FVTPL FVOCI |Amortised Cost| FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost
Investments
i) Investment in Equity Instruments - - - - - - -
Investment in Equity (Quoted) 1 -| 454,592,645 - -1 428,073,166 -
Investment in Equity (Quoted) 3 -| 176,169,214 - -| 138,190,445 -
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1 -| 72,078,122 - -1 21,932,612 -
iii) Investment in Preference Shares of
Bank and Financial Institutions - - - - -
iv) Investment in Debentures 3 - - 731,146,000 - 663,281,000
v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/
NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) 3 - - - - -
vi) Fixed Deposits 3 - -1 2,735,500,000 - 2,719,748,000
vii) Others (to be specified) 3 17,230,013 - 15,034,938
Loans 3 - - - - -
Other Financial Assets 3 - - 595,048,646 - 392,427 AT7
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 117,852,994 316,060,603 - -
Total Financial Assets 135,083,007 | 702,839,981 4,061,694,646 ( 331,095,541 588,196,223| 3,775,456,477
Loans and Borrowings - - 147,801,819 - - 200,228,619
Other Financial Liabilities 3 - - 307,346,696 - 200,736,039
Total Financial Liabilities 455,148,515 400,964,658
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Level 1 : Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2 : Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value
of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii) Valuation Process
The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are
held at least once in a year.

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:

a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.

b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Investments

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and
Financial Institutions

ii) Investment in Debentures 731,146,000 731,146,000 616,555,000 | 616,555,000

iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/
Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - - - -

iv) Fixed Deposit 2,735,500,000 | 2,735,500,000 2,043,600,000 | 2,043,600,000

v) Others (to be Specified)

Loans
i) Loan to Associates = s - .
i) Loan to Employees - 5 - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - 5 - .
Other Financial Assets 595,048,646 595,048,646 392,427 477 | 392,427 477

Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 4,061,694,646 | 4,061,694,646 3,052,582,477 | 3,052,582,477
Loans and Borrowings
i) Bond

ii) Debenture
iif) Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution

iv) Bank Overdraft 147,801,819 147,801,819 200,228,619 | 200,228,619
v) Others (to be Specified)

Other Financial Liabilities 307,346,696 | 307,346,696 200,736,039 | 200,736,039
Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 455,148,515| 455,148,515 400,964,658 | 400,964,658

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash
flows discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to
their short-term nature.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

46 Insurance Risk

Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature
of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance
or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks it
has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are in
excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an
appropriate mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is
complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
a) Product development

b) Pricing

c) Underwriting

d) Reinsurance

e) Claims Handling

f) Reserving

a) Product development:
The Company principally issues the following types of Non-Life Insurance contracts:
- Property
- Motor

Marine

- Engineering

- Micro

- Aviation

- Cattle and Crop

- Miscellaneous

The significant risks arising under the Non-Life Insurance portfolio emanates from changes in the climate
leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of people due to changing life styles, the steady escalation
of costs in respect of spares in the auto industries.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts
and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk
and level of insured benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review
of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place
to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing
and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that
can negatively impact the business.

b) Pricing:
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs
and the income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises
collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the base
rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions
used for pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits,
expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's own historical
experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and
external data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the
complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against
the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

c) Underwriting:
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the by the internal underwriting procedures. Some
of the actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:

i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management
staff, including those attached to the distribution network.

ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate
risk prior to acceptance

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers

d) Reinsurance

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the
reinsurers is in accordance with the terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written
by the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession made in
respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions made
for the loss. Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the obligation
to meet claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company. Default of reinsurers does not
negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit risk up to the extent ceded to
each reinsurer.

e) Claims handling:

Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate claims risks is detailed below:

i) Claims are assessed immediately.

i) Assessments are carried out by in-house as well as independent assessors / loss adjustors working
throughout.

iii) The service of a qualified independent actuary is obtained annually to assess the adequacy of
reserves made in relation to Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and

iv) Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) claims.

v) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

vi) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers

Sensitivities
The non-life insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the key assumptions as mentioned in the table
below.

The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and profit
after tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims
liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed
on an individual basis.
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f) Reserving

Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at
year end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
Insurance Assets Liabilities Insurance Assets Liabilities
Liabilities Liabilities
Fire 1,137,411,840 | 1,000,379,172 137,032,668 | 1,232,251,862 1,131,789,198 100,462,664
Motor 1,126,983,264 | 300,189,535 826,793,729 | 1,315,213,073 540,309,322 774,903,751
Marine 204,329,444 | 173,168,714 31,160,731 409,824,715 304,918,676 104,906,039
Engineering 783,905,454 | 773,499,215 10,406,239 615,716,560 561,910,885 53,805,675
Micro 956,775,863 | 955,592,530 1,183,333 | 1,187,923,217 1,185,237,739 2,685,478
Aviation 62,851,714 56,764,563 6,087,151 82,457,838 72,312,350 10,145,488
Cattle and Crop 400,541,899 | 319,927,969 80,613,930 223,855,525 173,654,665 50,200,860
Miscellaneous 389,438,385 | 334,806,585 54,631,800 329,837,257 268,211,681 61,625,576
Total 5,062,237,863 | 3,914,328,283 | 1,147,909,580 | 5,397,080,047 4,238,344,516 1,158,735,531

47 Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.

i) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their
payment obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that
an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance

contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit

risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes
credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches
are reported to the Company'’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and
for changes in the risk environment.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk
is avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase
strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2080
Gross Expected Carrying
Particulars éf:j; Carrying | Probability of Crgéﬁefgzg os | Amount After
Amount Default Provision
Credit Risk has not significantly increased hqoe?sﬁlgvaatqczemonths
since initial recognition expected credit losses - - - -
Credit Risk has significantly increased and Loss allowance
not credit impaired measured at life-time - - - -
expected credit losses
Credit Risk has significantly increased and
credit impaired - - - _
Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2080
Gross Expected Carrying
Particulars éfoslf; Carrying | Probability of Crgéﬁefggges Amount After
Amount Default Provision
Credit Risk has not significantly increased I&%s:sglg)&”amczemonths
since initial recognition expected credit losses - - - -
Credit Risk has significantly increased and Loss allowance
not credit impaired measured at life-time - - - -
expected credit losses
Credit Risk has significantly increased and
credit impaired - - - -
Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision
Measured at life-time expected credit losses
Measured at 12 months

Particulars

expected credit losses

Credit Risk has
significantly increased
and not credit impaired

Credit Risk has
significantly increased
and credit impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 32, 2079
Changes in loss allowances

Write-offs

Recoveries

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2080

ii) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic
events there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out—flows
and expected reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:
The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based
on their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars 1 Year to More than 1 Year to More than
Upto 1 Year 5 Year 5 Year Upto 1 Year 5 Year 5 Year
Borrowing 147,801,819 - - 200,228,619 -
Other Financial Liabilities 307,346,696 - - 200,736,039 -
Total Financial Liabilities 455,148,515 400,964,658

iii) Market Risk

a1) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure
Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its
assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value
between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does
not maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not
exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.

Alternative note for Foreign Currency Risk Exposure (where there is Foregn Currency Risk)
Operation of the Company has exposed it to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, with respect to the USD and Indian Rupees. The risk is measured through a forecast
of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the
volatility of the NPR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in
NPR, are as follows:

Current Year Previous Year

usD usD

Investments = s - -
Loans

Insurance Receivables
Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Indian Rupees Indian Rupees

505,430 91,284,974 480,583,819

Less: Derivative Assets
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -
i) Foreign exchange option contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -

505,430 91,284,974 480,583,819
286,052

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Assets)

Insurance Payables

132,037,705
Other Financial Liabilities -

Less: Derivative Liabilities
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - - - -
i) Foreign exchange option contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - - - -

286,052 132,037,705

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Liabilities)
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

a2) Foreign Currency Risk - Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments and the impact on the other components of equity arising from foreign
forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash flow hedges.

. Impact on profit after tax Impact on other component of equity
Particulars Current Year Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year

USD sensitivity
NPR/ USD - Increases by 10% * 2,014,312 - (8,402,399) -
NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% * (2,014,312) - 8,402,399 -
INR sensitivity
NPR/ Currency A - Increases by 10% * 10,233,502 - - -
NPR/ Currency A - Decreases by 10% * (10,233,502) - - -

* Holding all other variable constant

b1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance
liabilities.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity

Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level
by 1% which is reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would have the following
effect on the Profit After Tax.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* (1,218,107) (1,458,721)
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* 1,218,107 1,458,721

* Holding all other Variable Constant

c1)

c2)

Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from
investments held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair value
through OCI.

Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and
impact on OCI for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had
increased/ decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's equity
instruments moved in line with the index.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - -
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

48 Operation Risk
Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational
risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss.
The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework
and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff
education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes
in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and
budgeting process.

49 Climate Risk

Risk Governance

The board oversees climate change related matters through the Risk Management Committee. The Climate
Change Risk Officer is to be responsible for overseeing climate change risk related matters at the senior
management level. The CCO shall report to the Chief Executive Officer and the Risk Management Committee.
All heads of the departments, heads of Province office, branch offices and subbranch offices shall be
responsible for the implementation of the climate related policy of the company.

Risk Identification and Assessment’
Risks relating to climate change shall be identified at the operational level. For recognizing climate change
related risks, suitable scenario analysis and stress testing mechanism shall be developed.

Risk Measurement

While measuring business implications of climate change, the way climate related risks and opportunities
are likely to affect current and future financial performance in terms of major impact categories (revenue
and expenditure) need to be assessed.

Risk Reporting and Monitoring

Risks reports relating to the exposures of the identified climate related risks and performance in managing
them and presented to the senior management and to the board. The company shall use different metrics
such as CHG emissions, energy consumption, waste generation, single event maximum risk exposure and
other metrics for monitoring climate related risk.

For management of the climate related risk the company has adopted following measures:

a. Catastrophic reinsurance protection including risk coverage of earthquake, flood, storm, landslide which
limits the net retention of the company and protects from the spillover of the event limit of the reinsurance
treaty.

b. The company has started to use and purchase electric vehicles for official use.

c. The company has promoted the use of electric vehicles to its staff. Additional benefits are provided to
the staff who purchase electric vehicles under the employee vehicle scheme.

d. The company has reduced usage of paper through automation of the process. Use of paper is discouraged
as far as possible for all the operation of the company.

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Fig. in NPR

50 Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:

a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital
Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Directive issued by Nepal Insurance Authority to attain
a stipulated minimum paid up capital of NPR 2.5 billion by Chaitra, 2079. As on the reporting date, the

company's paid up capital is NPR 265,4947,300.00

Dividend
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
(i) Dividends recognised
Final dividend for the year ended Ashad 31, 2080
Ashad 32, 2079 - 16 % bonus share and 0.8421 % cash dividend 388,280,105 -
388,280,105 -
(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period - -
51 Earnings Per Share
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Profit For the Year 226,125,314 273,164,331
Less: Dividend on Preference Shares = -
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Basic Earning per Share 226,125,314 273,164,331
Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share 226,125,314 273,164,331
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for
Basic Earning per Share 26,549,473 18,871,612
Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:
i) Dilutive Shares = -
i) Options = -
iiif)y Convertible Bonds = -
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for
Diluted Earning Per Share 26,549,473 18,871,612
Nominal Value of Equity Shares
Basic Earnings Per Share 8.52 14.47
Diluted Earnings Per Share 8.52 14.47
Proposed Bonus Share -| 388,280,105.26
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for
Restated Earning Per Share - 22,754,413.40
Restated Basic Earnings Per Share - 12.00
Restated Diluted Earnings Per Share - 12.00
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

52 Segmental Information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is
also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that
it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these
industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the
view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary
to be presented.

Business Segments of the Company’s are:

i) Property
i) Motor
iii) Marine

iv) Engineering

v) Micro

vi) Aviation

vii) Cattle and Crop

viii) Miscellaneous
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

c) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segmental Profit

Add: Net gains/(losses) on Fair Value Changes

Add: Net Realized Gain/Losses
Add: Other Income

Less: Depreciation and Amortization
Less: Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation and Amortization
Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures

Less: Finance Cost
Profit Before Tax

617,786,770 | 461,646,732
(16,560,007) 3,300,088

(39,427) 147,561
(36,850,394) | (32,612,297)
(36,823,135)| (28,044,314)
(41,370,356) |  (24,003,023)
486,143,451 | 380,434,747

d) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment Assets

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Properties
Deferred Tax Assets
Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Assocites
Investments

Loans

Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Assets

Other Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

4,838,721,867

5,090,716,842

8,935,489
781,645,864

92,413,559

72,891,606
4,186,715,994

5,918,345
343,418,853
595,048,646
117,852,994

996,448
779,675,638

129,355,730

52,951,163
3,986,260,161

100,225,081
396,548,975
411,542,713
316,060,603

11,043,563,217

11,264,333,354

e) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Loans and Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

5,183,543,598

5,642,192,231

132,588,380

147,801,819
307,346,696
385,516,148

173,804,740

200,228,619
109,821,005
442,087,979

6,156,796,641

6,568,134,574
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
53 Related Party Disclosure

(a) Identify Related Parties

Holding Company:
N.A.

Subsidiaries:
N.A.

Associates:
Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited
Kriti Venture Fund

Fellow Subsidiaries:
N.A.

Board of Director & Key Management Personnel:

Gaurav Agrawal - Chairperson

Ramesh Kumar Luitel - Director

Saurav J.B. Rana - Director

Dr. Shrujana Shrestha - Director

Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya - Director

Skand Amatya - Director

Puskar Mahat - Director

Dip Prakash Panday - Chief Executive Officer

Bimal Raj Nepal - Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Sabita Maskey - Deputy Chief Executive Officer

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Short-term employee benefits 107,013,112 96,747,709
Post-employment benefits - -
Other long-term benefits - 909,000
Termination benefits - -
Total 107,013,112 97,656,709

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Annual salary and allowances 12,479,953 12,118,161
Performance based allowances
i) Employee Bonus 10,198,418 7,517,995
i) Benefits as per prevailing provisions
i) Incentives

Insurance related benefits

i) Life Insurance 461,428 461,428
ii) Accident Insurance 3,900 3,900
iii) Health Insurance (including family members) 8,400 8,400
Total 23,152,099 20,109,884

Shikhar
-+

ﬂPPt’I“}‘ﬂHCC




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(c) Related Party Transactions:

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Holding
Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial
Personnel

Total

Premium Earned
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Commission Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Rental Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Interest Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Premium Paid
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Commission Expenses
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Dividend
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Meeting Fees
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Allowances to Directors
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Others
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

4,706,873
3,271,800

4,706,873
3,271,800

(d) Related Party Balances:

Particulars

Holding
Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial
Personnel

Total

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Other Receivables
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Payables including Reinsurance Payables
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Other Payables
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
54 Leases

(a) Leases as Lessee

(i) Operating Leases:
The Company has various operating leases ranging from 1 year to 10 years. The leases are
renewable by mutual consent and contain escalation clause.
Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

There is no non- cancellable lease as such . All the lease (rental agreements) can be cancelled by
serving the notice period as per the agreement.

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
ii) Later than 5 years - -

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company does not hold assets under finance leases.

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
ii) Later than 5 years - -
Total Future Minimum Lease Payments - -
Less: Effect of Discounting - -
Finance lease liability recognised - -

(b) Leases as Lessor

(i) Operating Lease:
The Company has leased out certain office spaces that are renewable on a periodic basis. Rental
income received during the year in respect of operating lease is NPR 17,891,025 (Ashad 32, 2079
NPR 17,341,997).

The Company building situated at Ward No.11, Thapathali, Kathmandu is 8.5 storied and the
company has leased out 4 stories for rental purpose.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

There is no non- cancellable lease as such. The lease (rental agreement) can be cancelled by
serving the notice period as per the agreement.

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
ii)y Later than 5 years - -

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company has not leased out its asset under Finance Lease.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Gross Unearned Finance Net Gross Unearned Net
Investment Income Investment Investment Finance Income Investment

i) Not Later than 1 year - - - - - -
ii) Later than 1 year and

not later than 5 years - - - - - -
iii) Later than 5 years - - - - - -
Total - - - B . .
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fig. in NPR

55 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for: No capital Commitments
has been made

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Intangible Assets - -
Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Investment Properties - -
Total - -

56 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts

a) Income Tax 105,084,796 105,084,796
b) Indirect Taxes 15,065,942 15,065,942
c) Other

Total 120,150,738 120,150,738

57 Events occuring after Balance Sheet
Income tax relating to prior period relates to tax provision of Rs 84,313,020 which is paid by the company
after the reporting date for the tax on bonus share of Rs 281,043,400 distributed by the company in FY
2072/73 as bonus share from the share premium amount collected through further public offering in FY
2071/72.

58 Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Reinsurance Receivables - -
Investments in equity - -
Fixed Deposits 60,500,000 60,500,000
Property, plant and equipment 559,510,000 559,510,000
Others - -
Total 620,010,000 620,010,000

59 Corporate Social Responsibility
Company has to allocate 1% of its profit on Corporate Social Responsibility Fund (CSR) as per the provision
of financial directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority. The company has not only been focused on
profit and has been participating in various social activities considering its responsibility towards the society.
Company has appropriated 1 % ot its net profit (After adjustment of deferred tax) i.e.Rs. 25,23,245.00 as
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve. The company utilized amount Rs. 5,004,099 corporate social
responsibility reserve during this financial year.

60 Miscellaneous
(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.
(i) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure Il
Major Financial Indicator

SN ) Indicat Fiscal Year
- Particular o 07180 207879 | 2077778 207677 | 2075176
Equity:
1| Networth NRs. 4,886,766,576 | 4,696,198,780 | 3,843,602,198 | 3,322,862,901(2,709,939,515
2 | Number of Shares Number 26,549,473 22,860,812 17,585,240 10,573,106 | 10,573,106
3 | Book value per shares NRs. 184 205 219 314 256
4 | Net Profit NRs. 226,125,314 | 273,164,331 311,987,941 | 409,258,334 | 402,574,306
5 | Earning per Shares (EPS) NRs. 8.52 14.47 18 39 38
6 | Dividend per Shares (DPS) NRs. - 16.00 - 38 -
7 | Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NRs. 845 807 1,952 1,019 771
8 | Price Earing Ratio Ratio 99 56 110 26 20
9 | Change in Equity % 4% 22% 16% 23% 19%
10 | Return on Equity % 5% 9.23% 6.90% 13.91% 0.80%
11 | Capital to Total Net Assets Ratio % 38% 33% 30.88% 17.82% 22.57%
12 | Capital to Technical Reserve Ratio % 225% 197% - - -
13 | Affiliate Ratio % 1.49% 1.13% 1.37% 2.39% 11.21%
Business:
14 | Total Premium Growth Rate
Property % 5% 3.39% 42.36% 10.67% 20.43%
Motor % 6% 2.56% 2.90% -9.32% 0.02%
Marine % -19% 88.24% 1.37% 5.78% -3.75%
Engineering % 31% 310.04% 27.49% 59.08% -58.67%
Micro % 21% -94.97% 18.09% 4869.45% 379.82%
Aviation % -18% -48.82% 1.57% -5.56% 19.41%
Cattle and Crop % 57% 62.87% 108.46% 8.97% 41.69%
Miscellaneous % 16% 27.85% -20.81% -6.55% 16.18%
15 | Net Premium Growth Rate
Property % 44.72% -27.65% -1.21% 14.45% -2.45%
Motor % 7.68% -4.01% -1.98% -3.92% -25.05%
Marine % 21.75% 343.76% -26.33% -37.93% 149.12%
Engineering % 5.55% 12691.87% -64.29% -33.63% -97.40%
Micro % -83.04% -26.46% 167.27% 424.81% 379.81%
Aviation % -16.70% 44.73% 22.28% 396.35% -85.70%
Cattle and Crop % 56.72% 79.66% 3.56% -25.81% 50.31%
Miscellaneous % -6.52% 3.12% -35.91% 24.711% 23.35%
16 | Net Premium /Gross Insurance Premium
Property % 10.59% 7.16% 11.83% 15.24% 14.03%
Motor % 57.58% 56.18% 60.13% 59.19% 58.74%
Marine % 24.94% 35.86% 8.71% 77.37% 26.68%
Engineering % 4.37% 7.66% 0.17% 0.67% 1.31%
Micro % 50.72% 33.68% 25.88% 20.70% 100.00%
Aviation % 8.97% 6.62% 3.51% 2.80% 0.55%
Cattle and Crop % 19.73% 20.02% 19.80% 30.75% 43.31%
Miscellaneous % 14.44% 18.74% 18.30% 24.72% 31.76%
17 | Reinsurance commission/ Gross Reinsurance Premium % 16.33% 21.09% 19.16% 25.68% 27.95%
18 | Gross Premium/ Owner Equity % 105.15% 93.54% 97.67% 99.48% 124.40%
19 | Net Premium/ Equity % 27.42% 26.29% 30.04% 36.34% 53.75%
20 | Gross Insurance Premium/ Total Assets % 51.54% 39.00% 39.49% 40.82% 45.85%
21 | Return on Investment & Loan % 5.98% 4.62% 4.92% 4.23% 5.23%
22 | Net Profit/ Gross Insurance Premium % 4.25% 6.01% 8.31% 12.38% 11.94%
Expenses:
23 | Reinsurance Ratio % 73.99% 71.90% 69.24% 63.47% 62.55%
24 | Management expenses/ Gross Insurance Premium % 15.11% 15.93% 16.82% 18.07% 16.69%
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Fiscal Year

S.N. Particular Indicators
2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77 2075176
25 | Agent Related Expenses/ Gross Insurance Premium % 0.54% 0.61% 0.92% 0.91% 1.01%
26 | Agent Related Expenses/ Manangement Expenses % 3.53% 3.80% 2.15% 2.10% 7.39%
27 | Employee expenses/ Management expenses % 63.94% 64.55% 64.59% 66.65% 67.33%
28 | Employee expenses/ Employee numbers 803,771 756,546 659,027 656,090 620,963
29 | Expense Ratio (Underwriting Expense/
Net Written Premium) % 4.147% 4.530% 4.0% 3.43% 3.00%
30 | Commission ratio(Commission Expenses/
Net Written Premium) 2.091% 2.157% 2.976% 2.48% 2.08%
31 | Loss Ratio {(Claim Paid + change in reserve)/
(Net Written Premium)} % 76.43% 86.68% 79.51% 65.12% 77.23%
32 | Combined Ratio (Loss Ratio + Expense Ratio)' % 80.58% 91.21% 91.25% 70.19% 80.19%
Assets
33 | Increment in Investment Held % 5.46% 26.25% 2.75% 3.34% 18.37%
34 | Return on Assets % 3.21% 3.96% 3.28% 5.05% 5.48%
35 | Long Term Investment/Total Investments % 21.67% 16.42% 35.09% 31.90% 29.73%
36 | Short Term Investment/Total Investments % 78.33% 79.89% 64.91% 68.10% 70.27%
37 | Total Investment & loan/Gross Insurance
Contract Liabilities % 84.14% 74.84% 66.46% 99.27% 255.89%
38 | Investment in Unlisted Shares/Total Net Assets % 2.50% 2.00% 4.93% 2.55% 1.15%
39 | Investment in Shares/Total Net Assets % 6.46% 6.21% 1.72% 6.23% 3.65%
40 | Liquidity Ratio % 66.57% 43.55% 70.69% 112.07% 89.36%
Liabilities:
41 | Solvency Margin % 3.33% 3.41% 4.30% 6.80% 5.32%
42 | Increment in Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities % -6.20% 12.11% 53.47% 164.59% -12.69%
43 | Net Technical Reserve/ Average of
Net Claim Paid for Last 3 Years % 278.00% 247.10% 278.68% 49.30% 79.25%
44 | Actuarial Provision %
45 | Technical Provisions/ Total Equity % 24.13% 24.67% 28.43% 31.55% 43.75%
46 | Insurable Debt/ Total Equity % 3.02% 18.15% 20.55% 36.54% 35.08%
47 | Outstading Claim/Claim Intimated % 19.00% 29.00% 48.00% 39.00% 33.00%
48 | Outstanding Claim Number/ Number of Claim Paid % 5.12% 81.78% 105.82% 21.99% 26.34%
49 | Total Number of Inforce Insurance Policies Numbers 298,066 235,242 342,557 326,032 346,455
50 | Total Number of Renewed Insurance Policy/
Last year's Total Number of In force Policies % 21.21% 27.66% 26.85% 17.97% 21.48%
51 | Numbers of Intimated Claims/Total
Number of In Force Policy % 2.49% 4.49% 1.53% 1.61% 1.52%
Others:
52 | Number of Offices No.s 113.00 110.00 106.00 103.00 103.00
53 | Number of Agents No.s 135 93 143 131 95
54 | Number of Surveyor No.s 227 392 105 100 67
55 | Number of Employees No.s 642 621 619 615 620
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Graphs of Key Indicators
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Gross Claim Paid (Crore)
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Who are our Reinsurers?
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Koshi Province

Chandra complex, Mahendra chowk, Blratnagar

021-578391/021-578390

Lumbini Province
Milan chowk, Butwal
071-532568

Biratnagar

Chandra complex, Mahendra chowk
021-578391/021-578390
birt@shikharinsurance.com

Birtamod

Aduwapul, Birtamod, Jhapa
023-535666
birtamod@shikharinsurance.com

Damak

Damak-10, Main Road
023-584634
damak@shikharinsurance.com

Shikhar Insu

rance Co. Ltd.

Head Office

Shikhar Biz Centre, Thapathali
P.O. Box: 10692, Kathmandu, Nepal, Tel: 01-5346101, 01-5346102
E-mail: shikharins@mos.com.np Web: www.shikharinsurance.com

Madhesh Province
Adarshanagar, Birgunj
051-528181/051-528088

Karnali Province

Birendranagar-6, Hulak chowk,

Surkhet
083-523410

Dharan

Laxmi Sadak, Dharan-1
025-571430
dharan@shikharinsurance.com
Hile

Dhankuta-1, Hile
026-540715
hile@shikhrainsurance.com
lllam

lllam-7, Bhanu path
027-521837
ilam@shikharinsurance.com
Itahari

Main road, Itahari
025-585273

itahari@shikharinsurance.com

Bagmati Province

Shiva Arcade, Newroad, Kathmandu

01-5333191/5315799

Sudurpashchim Province

091-417195

Khandbari

Khandabari-1, Pokhari bazar
029-590355
khandbari@shikharinsurance.com
Phidim

Phidim-1, Panchthar

024-590082
phidim@shikharinsurance.com

Taplejung

Phungling -5, Birendra chowk, Taplejung
024-460883
taplejung@shikharinsurance.com

Terhathum

Terhathum myaglung -2, BN Bhawan
026-460350
terhathum@shikharinsurance.com

Our Province Offices

Gandaki Province
Newroad, Pokhara
061-573100/570333

Godawari Road, Chauraha, Dhangadhi

Our Branch Offices

Gaighat

Gaighat -11, Udayapur
035-422270
gaighat@shikharinsurance.com

Bhojpur

Bhojpur -7, Bich Bazar
029-420185
bhojpur@shikharinsurance.com

Okhaldhunga
Siddhicharan-11, Okhaldhunga
037-690111

Kakarbhitta, Biratchok, Duhabi
Inaruwa, Lukla, Khotang

Madhesh Province

Bardibas

Bardibas - 1, Mahottari
044-550697
bardibas@shikharinsurance.com
Birgunj

Adarshanagar, Birgunj
051-528181/051-528088
birg@shikharinsurance.com

Lalbandi

Sarlahi, Lalbandi -7
046-501344
lalbandi@shikharinsurance.com

Jaleshwor
Jaleshwor-4, Mahottari
044-590063

jaleshwor@shikharinsurance.com

Birgunj Extension Counter
051-590000

Bagmati Province

Narayangarh (Bharatpur)
Balmandir chowk, Bharatpur
056-590137/590237
narayangarh@shikharinsurance.com

Hetauda

Bank Road, Hetauda
057-526778/057-526779
hetauda@shikharinsurance.com

Newroad

Shiva Arcade, Newroad
01-5339960 /5339961
newroad@shikharnsurnce.com

Pulchok
Pulchok-20, Lalitpur
01-5452805/01-5439804

Naxal

Naxal-1, Kamalpokhari
01-4446138/4446139
naxal@shikharinsurance.com

Kalimati

Kalimati-13, Kathmandu
01-5389458
kalimati@shikharinsurance.com
Chabahil

Chabahil, chuchchepati
01-4481707 / 4481932
chabahil@shikharinsurance.com

Lahan Rajbiraj

Lahan-8, Purbabus Stand, Mainroad, Siraha Rajbiraj-7, Saptari

033-560932 031-530065

lahan@shikharinsurance.com rajbiraj@shikharinsurance.com

Janakpur Garuda

Shiv Chowk, Station Road, Janakpur Garuda - 4. Rautahat

041590134 055-565249

janakpur@shikharinsurance.com rautahat@shikharinsurance.com

Simara ) Mirchaiya

Simara - 1, Main Road Mirchaiya- 6, Siraha

053-521550 033-550343

simara@shikharinsurance.com mirchaiya@shikharinsurance.com
Banepa

Gongabu Banepa-5, Tindobatok, Kavre

Buddha Mall, Machhapokhari, Gongabu  011-663855

01-4950722/4950793
gongabu@shikharinsurance.com

Bhaktapur

Barahi sthan Suryabinayak, Bhaktapur
01-6617471
bhaktapur@shikharinsurance.com

Dhading

Nilakanth -3, Dhading besi, Shanta bazar
01-0521300
dhading@shikharinsurance.com

Nuwakot

Bidur - 2 , Batar Nuwakot
010-561829
nuwakot@shikharinsurance.com
Kirtipur

Kirtipur, Bahiri Gaun-9, Nayabazar
01-4334385
kirtipur@shikharinsurance.com

Rasuwa

Kailka-2, Rasuwa

010-594000
rasuwa@shikharinsurance.com

Baneshwor

Baneshwor, Kathmandu, instead of
Baneshwor-31/ Old Baneshwor
01-4464193/01-4464184
baneshwor@shikharinsurance.com

banepa@shikharinsurance.com

Maharajgunj

Chakrapath, Maharajgunj
01-4370190/01-4370089
maharajgunj@shikharinsurance.com

Tandi

Ratnanagarpalika-1, Bakulahar chowk,
Tandi

056-561114
tandi@shikharinsurance.com

Manthali

Manthali-1, Ramechhap
048-540612
manthali@shikharinsurance.com
Thimi

Thimi, Gaththaghar, Bhaktapur
01-6635765
thimi@shikharinsurance.com

New Baneshwor

Standard Chartered Bank, New Baneshwor
01-5907542
newbaneshwor@shikharinsurance.com

Naubise

Dhunibesi - 6, Dharke, Naubise
010-414142
naubise@shikharinsurance.com

Madi

Basantapur-3 Madi, Chitwan
056-501056
madi@shikharinsurance.com

Chapagaon
Godabari -11, Chapagaon, Lalitpur
01-5265088
chapagaon@shikharinsurance.com

Gwarko

Gwarko - 7, Lalitpur
01-5200783
gwarko@shikharinsurance.com

Bhainsepati

Sainbu, Bhaisepati - 4, Lalitpur
01-5900633
bhaisepati@shikharinsurance.com

Thamel
Thamel- 27, Tridevi Marg, Kathmandu
9841634669

Charikot

Charikot, Dolakha

049-421414
charikot@shikharinsurance.com

Chanauli

Bharatpur-20, Chanauli Bazar
056-591979
chanauli@shikharinsurance.com



Lubhu

Mahalaxmi-8, Labhu, Lalitpur
01-5580735
lubhu@shikharinsurance.com

Mulpani

Kageshwori, Mahanara-5, Thali, Mulpani
01-4451565
mulpani@shikharinsurance.com

Satungal

Chandragiri-12, Gurjudhara, Kathmandu
01-5919776
satungal@shikharinsurance.com

Thaiba

Godawari Na.Pa.-3, Taukhel
01-5560830
thaiba@shikharinsurance.com

Palung

Thaha Nagarpalika -03, Shikharkot
057-400074
palung@shikharinsurance.com

Bhandara

Rapti-5, Bhandara

056-550137
bhandara@shikharinsurance.com

Salayantar

Tripurasundari-2, Salayantar
063-440701
salayantar@shikharinsurance.com

Kurintar, Chautara

Gandaki Province

Pokhara

Newroad, Pokhara
061-573100/570333
pokhara@shikharinsurance.com

Lekhnath

Talchowk- 27, Lekhnath, Pokhara
061-561832
lekhnath@shikharinsurance.com

Besisahar

Instead of Sundarbazar, Lamjung
066-402162
lamjung@shikharinsurance.com

Dumkibas

Sardiroad, Nawalpur

078-416052
dumkibas@shikharinsurance.com

Dumre Waling Jomsom Arunkhola
Bandipur - 1, Dumre Bazar, Tanahu Waling - 3, Syangja Gharapjong-3, Airport Arunkhola, Damauli
065-580380 063-440701 069-440442 Tanahun
dumre@shikharinsurance.com waling@shikharinsurance.com jomsom@shikharinsurance.com
Kawasoti Beni Dulegauda
Kawasoti - 8, Savapati chowk Beni - 7, Newroad, Myagdi Khairenitar, Tanahu
078-541141/078-541142 069-521335 065-412158
kawasoti@shikharinsurance.com beni@shikharinsurance.com dulegauda@shikharinsurance.com
Kushma Baglung Anbukhaireni
Kushma-6, Dhaneshwor Chowk, Parbat | - Dhawalagiri Chowk-2, Baglung Byas-8, Tanahu
067-420497 068-521896 065-580380
kushma@shikharinsurance.com baglung@shikharinsurance.com damauli@shikharinsurance.com

Lumbini Province
Nepalgunj Jeetpur Gulmi Lamahi
Dhamboji-2, Surkhet road Jeetpur-4, Kapilvastu Resunga -1, Putali Bazar, Gulmi Bus Park, Lamahi-5
081-537464/537465 076-550317 079-520991 082-540878
nepg@shikharinsurance.com jitour@shikharinsurance.com gulmi@shikharinsurance.com lamahi@shikharinsurance.com
Butwal Gulariya Kohalpur Chandrauta
Sukrapath-8, Butwal Jilla Prahari Karyalaya, Chowk, Gulariya | Newroad Ganesh Chowk - 4, Kohalpur Shivraj, Kapilvastu
071-532568/533568 084-421606 081-540273 076-540568
butwal@shikharinsurance.com gulariya@shikharinsurance.com kohalpur@shikharinsurance.com chandrauta@shikharinsurance.com
Dang Sunwal Bijuwar Arghakhanchi
Shahid Umesh marga 15, Ghorahi, Dang Nawalparasi road, Sunawal Bijuwar- 4, Pyuthan Sandhikharka-1, Arghakhachi
082-563549 078-570471 086-460121 077-420560
dang@shikharinsurance.com sunawal@shikharinsurance.com bijuwar@shikharinsurance.com arghakhanchi@shikharinsurance.com
Bhairahawa Rampur Tulsipur Murgiya
Naya Sadak-7, Bhairahawa Rampur-4, Palpa Tulsipur- 5, BP Chowk, Dang Murgiya, Sainamaina - 3, Rupandehi
071-570141 075-400200 082-523515 071-440389
bhw@shikharinsurance.com rampur@shikharinsurance.com tulsipur@shikharinsurance.com murgiya@shikharinsurance.com
Taulihawa Palpa Bardaghat
Kapilvastu-1, Taulihawa Tansen - 4, Silkhantole, Palpa Bardaghat - 4, Nawalparasi
076-590217 075-521517 078-590968

taulihawa@shikharinsurance.com

palpa@shikharinsurance.com

bardaghat@shikharinsurance.com

Karnali Province

Dailekh

Devkota Chowk, Narayan Municipality-1
089-410227
dailekh@shikharinsurance.com

Dolpa

Dunai Bazar, Guthi chaur, Dolpa
9869539221
dolpa@shikharinsurance.com

Surkhet

Birendranagar-6, Hulak chowk, Surkhet
083-523410
surkhet@shikharinsurance.com

Mugu

Chhayanath Rara -1, Gamgadhi, Mugu
087-460236
mugu@shikharinsurance.com

Kalikot

Khadachakra -1, Kalikot
087-440033
kalikot@shikharinsurance.co

Jumla

Chandannath - 5, Khalanga Bazar, Jumla
087-520625
jumla@shikharinsurance.com

Humla

Simikot - 5, Humla
087-680226
humla@shikharinsurance.com

West Rukum

Musikot-1, Tribenichowk, Kalanga
088-530213
west.rukum@shikharinsurance.com
Jajarkot

Khalanga, Jajarkot Na. Pa.-4, Bheri
089-594040

jajarkot@shikharinsurance.com

Salyan

Sarda Na. Pa.-1, Srinagar
9869970146
salyan@shikharinsurance.com

Sudurpashchim Province

|

Dadeldhura

Amargadi-5, Dadeldhura
096-410315
dadeldhura@shikharinsurance.com
Doti

Pipla Bazar, Dipayal, Doti
094-590048
doti@shikharinsurance.com

Mahendranagar Belauri

Vimdatta-18, Campus road, Mahendranagar Belauri -4, Kanchanpur
099-524464 099-580374
mahendranagar@shikharinsurance.com belauri@shikharinsurance.com
Dhangadhi Lamki

Godawari road, Chauraha Lamki chuha-1, Lamki, Kailali
091-417195 091-590275

dhangadi@shikharinsurance.com

lamki@shikharinsurance.com

Bajhang

Jay Prithivi -10, Chainpur, Bajhang
092-421516
bajhang@shikharinsurance.com

Attaria

Godawari-13, Attariya
091-590254
attariya@shikharinsurance.com

Achham

Sanfebagar Nagarpalika -4, Achham
097-590465
chham@shikharinsurance.com
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Annual Strategy Meet
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Management Team

b eV 11111 LA
Bimal Raj Nepal Sabita Maskey
Deputy Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Udit Kafle Prajwal Acharya Raj Rimal
General Manager General Manager General Manager

),
Prakash Thapa Suraj Rajbahak Prarthana Shahi Dip Prakash Panday

Assistant General Manager Deputy General Manager Assistant General Manager Chief Executive Officer
Company Secretary






